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The Colorado River Commission of Nevada (Commission) Financial and Audit
Subcommittee (Subcommittee) meeting was called to order by Commission Vice
Chairwoman Kelley at 2:34 p.m.

A. Conformance to Open Meeting Law. I
Executive Director Eric Witkoski confirmed that the meeting was posted in
compliance with the Open Meeting Law.

B. Comments from the public. (No action may be taken on a matter raised
under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically
included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.)

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley asked if there were any comments from the
public. There were none.

C. For Possible Action: Approval of minutes of the December 10, 2019
meeting.

Commissioner Stewart moved for approval of the minutes. The motion was
seconded by Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley and approved by a
unanimous vote by those present.

D. For Possible Action: Discussion, review and possible acceptance of the
draft Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 2020 IncludIng but not limited to, update
of audit related activities, potential issues with the timely completion of the
audit and discussion of any audit findings.

Chief of Finance and Administration Doug Beatty introduced the Financial Audit for
Fiscal Year 2020, stating that the audit, performed by Eide Bailly LLP in conjunction
with Staff, is substantially complete with the exception of a couple items that are
awaiting further information. Mr. Beatty explained that of the outstanding items, only
one item was significant.

Mr. Beatty then indicated that Eide Bailly typically utilizes State-provided Public
Employment Retirement System (PERS) census information related to retirement
liability to complete their audit, but the audit for the Slate of Nevada has been delayed
due to the ongoing COVID-19 emergency and has been scheduled to begin in
January of 2021. Due to the delay, the information from the state is still not available.
This is the only significant item still awaiting information and it is anticipated that it will
be available shortly. Once received, the auditors can verify the numbers related to
the PERS information already in the financial statements.

Mr. Beatty stated that though the reports presented during this meeting were drafts
only, he believes there will be no substantive changes in the final version.

John Hansen, auditor from Elde Balily, presented Elde Bailly’s draft reports for
Fiscal Year 2020. Copies of the reports are attached and made a part of the
minutes. (See Attachment A.)
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Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick asked if the delay in information from
PERS would affect all State and local government agency audits and if Eide Bailly
was requesting information from Commission Staff that differed from information
asked of other agencies. She stated that she had not been made aware, via her
other official positions, of a delay with PERS causing wide-spread issues for
governmental agency audits for FY 2020.

Mr. Hansen answered that Eide Bailly requires the same information from
Commission Staff as any other government agencies for whom Eide Bailly
performs audits, and the same information is requested by Nevada State auditors
themselves.

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick replied that she did not want this delay to
necessitate the submission of a late report by Staff, again asking what information
Eide Bailly was requesting that differed from that asked for by other agencies to
complete their own audits.

Mr. Hansen answered that Eide Bailly needed to perform certain procedures using
the PERS census data that was used to create their actuarial calculations and was
not personally aware of why the state has been unable to provide the information.

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick asked that Eide Bailly provide Staff with a
written statement detailing the reasons for the delay of the finalized audit and
explaining that Staff is not at fault.

Chairwoman Kelley asked if Eide Bailly also conducted the audit for the Southern
Nevada Health District (SNHD).

Mr. Hansen answered that he was not involved in the SNHD audit and therefore
could not speak to it specifically, but that for the Commission, Eide Bailly relies on
the State audit that is usually completed at the same time as the Commission audit,
but due to this years delay, Eide Bailly has not been able to obtain that data.

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick reiterated the need for Eide Bailly to
provide Staff with a written statement explaining that Staff is not at fault for a late
audit report.

Mr. Hansen stated that a statement could be provided to Staff.

Tamara Miramontes, auditor from Eide Bailly, explained that because the
Commission Is a component of the State of Nevada, the agency does not have a
separate breakout on the allocation schedule issued by PERS, and the
Commission’s data is included in that of the entire state. The State Controller’s
Office, upon receipt of the schedule issued by PERS, then allocates the data
according to individual agency.

Vice Chairwoman Kirkpatrick again reiterated the need for Elde BaIlly to provide
Staff with a letter regarding this Issue.
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Ms. Miramontes stated that Eide Bailly would provide Staff with a letter.

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick stated that she did not see the need for
another meeting of the Subcommittee if the draft audit required only the PERS
data for completion.

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kirkpatrick moved for approval of the
recommendation that once the pertinent data from PERS was received, Staff
would bring the audit before the full Commission with the addendum
provided by Eide Bailly explaining the delay of the final draft. The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Stewart and approved by a unanimous
vote.

E. Comments from the public. (No action may be taken on a matter raised
under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically
included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken)

Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley asked if there were any comments or questions
from the public. There were none.

I F. Comments and questions from the Commission members. I
Subcommittee Chairwoman Kelley asked if there were any other comments or
questions from the Commission members.

Chairwoman Kelley thanked Staff.

I G. Selection of next possible meeting date.

The next meeting date is to be determined.

I H. Adjournment.

The meeting was adjourned at 3:14 p.m.

Eric Witkoski, Executive Director
APPROVED:

Ka ra eyA6,2O1T)

Kara J. Keiley, Subcommittee Chairwoman
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ATTACHMENT A

Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

Colorado River Commission of Nevada



ATTACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted
Receivables

Accounts
Accrued interest

Internal balances
Prepaid items
Current portion of prepaid power

Total current assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deterred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to OPEB
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Liabilities

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue
Payable to customers
Customer collateral and other deposits
Current portion of accrued compensated absences
Current portion of bonds payable
Accrued interest

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Unearned revenue, net of current portion
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Deterred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to OPEB
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Total deferred Inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resourcn

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for research and revelopment
Unrestricted

Total net position

15,560
79,466

227,755
16,547

14,532,309

137,733
565,680

703,413

9,914,128

10,690
11,810,958
(5,988,110)

5,833,538

1,921,600
32,511

(227,765)
494,454

1,686,284

8,148,844

$ 2,984,102
181,463

3,213,751
1,726,683
1,196,235

328,966
755,000
260,564

10,646,764

25,847,118
42,247,331

189,443
2,267,165

_______________

5,986,027

68,094,449 76,537,084

- 137,733
- 565,680

• 703,413

77,973,133 87,887261

45,172,737
11,810,958

_______________

(49,345,639)

_______________

7,638,056

Total liabIlIties, deterred inflows of resources and net position $ 15,747,666 $ 79,777,651 $ 95,525,317

$ 14,192,971 $ 4,241,760

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets being depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation
Prepaid power, net of current portion

$ 18,434,731

1,937,160
111,977

511,001
1,686,284

22,681,153

2,602,818
45,172,737
23,863,942

71,639,497

94,320,650

121,517
1,083,150

1,204,667

$ 95,525,317

A
10,690

10,690

14,542,999

121,517
1,083,150

1,204,667

——- $ 15,747,665

$ 198,888
181,453
58,763

328,966

768,080

189,443
2,267,165
5,986027

8,442,635

2,602,818
45,162,047
23,863,942

71,628,807

79,777,651

$ 79,777,651

$ 2,785,214

3,154,988
1,726,683
1,196,235

755,000
260,564

9,878,684

25,847,118
42,247,331

45,162,047

(43,357,529)

1,804,518

See Notes to Financial Statements 14



Program Net (Expenses) Revenue and
Revenues Changes in Net Position

A17ACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities
General government
Research and development

Business-type Activities
Power marketing
Power delivery

Total

Governmental
Activities

$ 59,946
294,829

354775

354,775

Charges for
Expenses Services

$ 2,853,053 $ 2,912,999
425,556 720,385

3,278,609 3,633,384

28,095,112 28,060,731
16,101,489 16,047,305

44,196,601 44,108,036

$ 47,475,210 $ 47,741,420

General Revenues
Investment income
Gain on disposition of

property and equipment
Miscellaneous

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

Business-type
Activities

$

(34,381)
(54,184)

(88,565)

(88,565)

139,516

139,516

50,951

1,753,567

$ 1,804,518

382,851

Total

$ 59,946
294,829

354,775

(34,381)
(54,184)

(88,563)

266,2 10

522,367

2,806
67,385

592558

858768

6,779,288

$ 7,638,056

2,806
67,385

453,042

807,817

5,025,721

$ 5,833538

See Notes to Financial Statements 15



ATTACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2020

Research and
Development Total

Special Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,389,299 $ 11,803,672 $ 14,192,971
Receivables

Accounts 15,560 - 15,560
Accrued interest 13,417 66,049 79,466

Prepaid Items 16,547 16,547
Due from Other Funds 227,765 227,765

Total assets $ 2,662,588 $ 11,869,721 $ 14,532,309

Liabilities and Fund Balances

liabilities
Accounts payable $ 198,888 $ - $ 198,888
Accrued payroll A 181,463 - 181,463
Unearned revenue

- 58,763 58,763

Total liabilities 380,351 58,763 439,114

Fund Balances
Nonspendable - prepaid items — 16,547 - 16,547
Restricted for research and development - 11,810,958 11,810,958
unassigned 2,265,690 - 2,265,690

Total fund balances 2,282,237 11,810,958 14,093,195

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,662,588 $ 11,869,721

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
4

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because
long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current
period are not reported in the funds.

Accrued compensated absences 5 (518,409)
Net OPEB liability (2,267,165)
Net pension liability (5,986,077)

(8,771,601)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and
OPEB are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not
reported In the funds.

Oeferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (137,733)
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensIons (565,680)
Deferred outflows of resources related to ORB 121,517
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 1,083,150

501,254
capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in

the governmental funds as expenditures. For governmental
activities, these costs are capitalited in the statement of net position
and depreciated over their estimated useful lives 10690

Net position of governmental activities $ 5,833,538

See Notes to Financial Statements 16



ATTACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2020

337,836 611,245

1,944,401 11,199,713

_______________

$ 2,282,237 $ 11,810,958

_____________

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because

Change in fund balances, governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
In the statement of activities the cost of those assets Is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense was greater
than capital outlays In the current period.

Sortie expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change In accrued compensated absences (60,301)
Change in net OPEB liability and related deferred

outflows and Inflows of resources 14486
Change In net pension liability and related deferred

outflows and inflows of resources (89.855)
(135,670)

Change n net position ol governmental activities $ 807,81?

Revenues

Charges for services
investment income
Multi-species surcharge
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current

Research and
Development

Special
General Fund Revenue Fund

$$ 2,912,999
66,435

67,385

3,046,819

5,683,653

2,698,531

(2,985,122)

13,258

2,711,789

b 2,806

316,416
720,385

1,036,801

425,556

425,556

General administration
less salaries and overhead recovered by allocation

Net general administration expenditures

Multi-species assessment
Water purchases

Total expenditures

Other financing sources

Proceed from the sale of asset

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 2,912,999
382,851
720,385

67,385

4,083,620

5,683,653
(2 ,98 5, 122)

2,698,531

425,556
13,258

3,137,345

2,806

949,081

13,144,114

$ 14,093,195

$ 949,081

(5,594)

See Notes to FInancial Statements 17



ATTACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Variance

________

Budget with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues

Power administrative charge $ 2,363,229 $ 2,363,229 $ 1,589,854 $ (773,375)
Water charges 2,205,893 2,205,893 1,323,145 (882,748)
Investment income 80,202 80,202 66,435 (13,767)
Miscellaneous 59,347 59,347 67,385 8,038

Total revenues 4,708,671 4,708,671 3,046,819 (1,661,852)

Expenditures

Current
General government

Personnel services 5,306,863 5,306,863 4,309,103 997,760
Travel

Out-of-state 56,889 56,889 36,289 20,600
In-state 9,485 9,485 2,518 6,967

Operating
Rent and insurance 146,091 146,091 147,679 (1,588)
Dues and registration fees 71,215 71,215 75,082 (3,867)
Contractual services 759,207 759,207 140,385 618,822
Other L 261,880 263,280 274,023 (10,743)

Legal 1 609,844 609,844 609,465 379
Equipment, furniture and software , 159,472 159,472 89,109 70,363
Water purchases 13,255 14,155 13,258 897

Total expenditures 7,394,201 7,396,501 5,696,911 1,699,590

Less salaries and overhead
recovered by allocation (2,725,577) (2,725,577) (2,985,122) 259,545

Net expenditures 4,668,624 4,670,924 2,711,789 1,959,135

Other financing sources

Proceeds from sale of asset - - 2,806 2,806

Excess (deficiency) of rcvenues
over (under) expenditures
and change In fund balance 40,047 37,747 337,836 300,089

Fund balance, beginning 1,692,571 1,932745 1,944,401 11,656

Fund balance, ending $ 1.732,618 $ 1,970,492 $ 2,282,237 $ 311,745

See Notes to Financial Statements 18



ATTACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

Research and Development Special Revenue Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Investment income
Multi-species surcharge

Total revenues

Expenditures

Multi-species assessment

Net expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
and change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

11,199,713

$ 11,810,958

Variance
with

BudgetFinal

$ 97,969
(28,631)

69,338

553,392

553,392

622,730

14,834

S 637,564

Revenues

Budget
Original Final Actual

$ 185,520 $ 218,447 $ 316,416
749,016 749,016 720,385

934,536 967,463 1,036,801

978,948 425,556

A
978,948978,948 4

L/
(44,412) L (11,485)

— — -

10,557,285 11,184,879

$ 10,512,873 $ 11,173,394

56

611,245

• r

See Notes to Financial Statements 19



ATrACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Net Position

Business-type Activities

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2020

Assets

Power
Marketing

Enterprise Funds
Power

Delivery Totals

Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Unearned revenue

25,847,118
5,858,748 36,388,583

25,847,118
42,247,331

Total noncurrent liabilities 31,705,866 36,388,583 68,094,449

Total liabilities 37,207,601 40,993,297 78,200,898

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

6,887,139
(5,351,402)

38,274,908
(38,006,127)

45,162,047
(43,357,529)

Total net position 1,535,737 268,781 1,804,518

Total liabilities and net position $ 38,743,338 $ 41,262,078 $ 80,005,416

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivaients, unrestricted $ 2,669,070 $ 1,572,690 $ 4,241,760
Receivabies

Accounts 886,626 1,034,974 1,921,600
Accrued interest 24,532 7,979 32,511

Prepaid items 444,647 49,807 494,454
Current portion of prepaid power 1,686,284 1,686,284

Total current assets 5,711,159 2,665,450 8,376,609

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivaients 2,281,098 321,720 2,602,818
Capital assets

Power transmission system, net 6,887,139 38,064,210
Automobiles and equipment, net 210,698

Prepaid power, net of current portion

Total non current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable —

Unearned revenue
Payable to customers
Customer coilateral and other deposits
Current portion of bonds payable
Due to other funds
Accrued Interest

23,863,942

33,032,179

$ 38,743,338

38,596,628

$ 41,262,078

44,951,349
210,698

23,863,942

71,628,807

$ 80,005,416

Total current liabilities

$ 1,809,537
1,429,554

60,971
1,168,575

755,000
17,534

260,564

5,501,735

$ 975,677
1,725,434
1,665,712

27,660

210,231

4,604,714

$ 2,785,214
3,154,988
1,726,683
1,196,235

755,000
227,765
260,564

10,106,449

See Notes to Financial Statements 20



ATrACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities
- Enterprise Funds

Operating Revenues
Power sales $ 28,060,731 $ 16,047,305 $ 44,108,036

Operating Expenses
Power purchases
Prepaid power advances
Depreciation
General administration

25,817,589
1,684,284

317,867
275,372

11,173,479 36,991,068
1,684,284
2,047,682
3,473,567

Total operating expenses 28,095,112 16,101,489 44,196,601

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income

(34,381)

93,904

(54,184) (88,565)

45,612 139,516

Change in Net Position 59,523 18,572) 50,951

$ 1,804,518

Power
Marketing

Power
Delivery Totals

1,729,815
3,198,195

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, Ending

1,476,214

$ 1,535,737

277,353

$ 268,781

1,753,567

See Notes to Financial Statements 21



ATTACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Power Power
Marketing Delivery Totals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 27,321,652 $ 14,371,403 $ 41,693,055
Cash paid for goods and services (26,090,609) (14,370,378) (40,460,987)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,231,043 1,025 1,232,068

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash used for debt service:

Principal (740,000)
- (740,000)

Interest (1,049,840) - (1,049,840)

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities (1,789,840) - (1,789,840)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets

- (77,964) (77,964)
Proceeds received on sale of capital assets - - -

Investment income received — 113,452 51,622 165,074

Net cash provided (used )by investing activities 113,452 (26,342) 87,110

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
(restricted and unrestricted) r (445,345) (25,317) (470,662)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 5,395,513 1,919,727 7,315,240
IL

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 4,950,168 $ 1,894,410 $ 6,844,578

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating loss $ (34,381) $ (54,184) $ (88,565)
Depreciation 317,867 1,729,815 2,047,682
Gain on sale of capital assets
Amortization of prepaid power 1,809,943 . 1,809,943
Amortization of unearned revenue power transmission (283,488) (1,675,628) (1,959,116)
Amortization of bond premiums and discounts 5,995 - 5,995
(Increase) decrease In operating assets

Accounts receivable (313339) (270,009) (583,348)
Prepald items 39,428 (3,338) 36,090

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable (50,072) 32,611 (17,461)
Unearned revenue (59,726) (45,129) (104,855)
Payable to customers (284,233) 380,387 96,154
Customer collateral and other deposits 73,845 (65,523) 8,322
Due to other funds 12,996 (21,9)7) (14,981)
Accrued interest (3,792) . (3,792)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 1,231,043 $ 1,025 $ 1,232,068

See Notes to Financial Statements 22



ATtACHMENT A

• Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) is responsible for managing the State of Nevada’s
interests in the water and power resources available from the Colorado River.

Seven commissioners have broad statutory authority to govern the Commission, which constitutes the reporting
entity. The Commission, as a component unit of the State of Nevada (Nevada or the State), is also an integral
part of that reporting entity. There are no other entities for which the Commission is financially accountable,
thus requiring them to be reported as component units of the Commi on.

All of the Commission’s cash receipts and disbursements are processed and recorded by the State’s Controller.
Budgetary and cash controls are imposed by the State Controller on the Commission’s general and special
revenue funds, while other State-imposed cash control requirements apply to the Commission’s enterprise
funds. The Commission maintains its own revenue, exp e and general journals and a general ledger.

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus, and Basis of Acc nting

Basis of Presentation —

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (GAAP) applicable to government units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), principally GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis —for State and Local Governments, as amended, along with related pronouncements. The GASB is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The Commission is not subject to rguIation by federal or state utility regulatory bodies such as the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission or the Nevada Public Utilities Commission.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures, some of which may require revisions in future periods.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Government.wide financial statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information on all of the activities of the Commission. Eliminations have been made where appropriate to
minimize the double counting of internal activities, These statements distinguish between the Commission’s
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through inter
governmental revenues and other exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed primarily by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to that particular program or function, Certain Indirect costs are included in the program expense
reported for Individual functions and activities, Program revenues consist of charges paid by the recipients of
services offered by the programs. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as
general revenues.
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Fund financial statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Commission’s funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary — are presented. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
Any remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues of proprietary funds include investment earnings and revenues
resulting from ancillary activities.

The Commission reports the following major governmental funds:

Generalfund — The general fund is the Commission’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

r
Research and Development fund — This fund is used to account for the Lower Colorado River Multi-Species
Conservation Program (LCRMSCP or MSCP), a fifty-year program that provides for Endangered Species Act (ESA)
compliance. The program is administered by the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) and the Fish and
Wildlife Service. Program costs are paid by the USBR and the States of Nevada, California and Arizona. Nevada’s
share of Program funding is paid partially by the Southern Nevada Water Authority (paid directly to the USBR),
and partially by the Commission’s hydropower customers. The fund accounts for the collection and remittance
of the Hydropower customers’ portion of the program. In addition, certain program reserves are maintained in
the fund for future MSCP needs. These reserves are contractually committed to the MSCP program.

Additionally, the Commission reports the following major enterprise funds:
A

Power marketing enterprise fund. This fund operates as a public utility and accounts for the activities of
providing electrical power generated at a federal facility to its customers.

Power delivery enterprise fund. This fund is used to account for the construction and operation of power
transmission equipment for the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA).

M.asur.m.nt Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. For the year ended June 30, 2020, there were no non-exchange
transactions (those for which the Commission gives, or receWes, value without directly receiving, or giving, equal
value in exchange) reported in the accompanying financial statements.
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Governmentalfund financial statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, principally charges for services and
investment income, are susceptible to accruaL and, therefore, recognized when measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within sixty days after year end. Expenditures
generally are recorded when the related liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-
term debt, claims and judgments, pension liabilities, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures only when payment is due. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

It is the Commission’s policy to use restricted resources first when both restricted and unrestricted (unassigned)
resources are available for use, and then unrestricted (unassigned) resources as needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Cash Equivalents

The Commission’s restricted and unrestricted cash is deposited with the State Treasurer (the Treasurer) in a
fund similar to an external investment pool (Notes 3 and 4). Because the amounts deposited with the Treasurer
are sufficiently liquid to permit withdrawals in the form of cash at any time without prior notice or penalty, they
are deemed to be cash equivalents. h

State statutes authorize the Treasurer to invest the Commission’s deposits in certain obligations of the United
States of America, or its agencies or instrumentalities, and of state and local governments, as well as other
financial instruments specified in Section 355.170 of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). The Treasurer is also
permitted by statute to lend its securt to broker-dealers and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to
return the collateral for the san1tuin the future. The Commission had no outstanding securities lending
transactions as of June • 2020.

Deposit values reflect unr d gains and losses on invested funds as reported by the Treasurer.

R.c.lvabl.s and Payables

All outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”.

Since sales are made only to customers who are known to have acceptable credit and no bad debts have ever
been sustained, an allowance for uncollectible accounts is not considered to be necessary.

Pr.pald Power

The Commission has participated with the State in funding the improvement and renovation (“uprating”) of the
electrical power generation plant and visitors’ center at Hoover Dam, which supplies the majority of the power
sold through the power marketing fund. These costs are to be reimbursed in the form of power consumption
and charged to expense over the estimated useful life of 30 years,
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Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

The various resources that are limited as to use by bond covenants for debt service, operation and maintenance
(O&M), and capital improvement and construction (acquisition) are classified as restricted cash and cash
equivalents. Net position is restricted to the extent restricted assets exceed related liabilities and contractually
with regard to certain operations and maintenance costs.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets
are reported at acquisition value. The capitalization threshold is $5,000.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities, if any, is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

I

Capital assets of the Commission are depreciated using the straight-line method over their useful lives currently
estimated as follows:

Governmental Activities — Years
Office equipment . 5
Office furniture and fixtures S
Automobiles 4—6

Business-type Activities Years
Power transmission systems 10—SQ
Office equipment 5
Automobiles 4—6

Estimated useful lives are determined by the State and the Commission has no authority to alter the estimated
useful lives prescribed by the State.

Compiniatid Abancis

it is the Commission’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits, All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured,
for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

MuItlpl.-Employ.r Cast-Sharing D.fin.d bn.flt P.nslon Plan

The Commission uses the same basis used In the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada’s (PERS)
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for reporting Its proportionate share of the PERS collective net pension
liability, deferred outflows and Inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, including
Information related to PERS fiduciary net positIon. Benefit payments (Including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized by PERS when due and payable In accordance with the benefit terms. PERS
investments are reported at fair value.
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Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future
periods; and therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
government-wide statement of net position reports 1) the changes in proportion and differences between
actual contributions and proportionate share of contributions related to pensions, which will be amortized over
the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pension benefits, 2) the net
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, which are deferred and
amortized over five years, and 3) contributions for pensions and OPEB made subsequent to the measurement
date, which will be recognized in the subsequent year.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net positi at applies to a future periods(s) and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government-wide statement of
net position reports 1) the differences between expected and actual experience and changes of assumptions,
which will be amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with
pension benefits, 2) the net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments, which will be
amortized over five years, and 3) changes in assumptions or other inputs to the total OPEB liability which are
deferred and amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with
health benefits,

V

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue represents advanced funding to the Commission from certain customers for the construction
of electric power facilities to provide power for the customer’s operations. These facilities are dedicated to the
exclusive use of those customers and are the only existing method of delivery of electrical resources for their
operations. Recovery of the cost of the facilities is a component of the cost of power resources provided and is
being recognized over the life of the assets as the assets are consumed (depreciated).

Long-term Obligations
h Ad

in the accompanying government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Issuance costs are expensed as incurred.

Fund Equity or N& Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report five classifications of fund balance. Nonspendable
are amounts that are not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted is the result of constraints placed on assets that are externally imposed by creditors or imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed are amounts set aside by formal action
of the Commission’s members, Formal Commission action Is also required to modify or rescind an established
commitment, Assigned is the result of constraints on amounts imposed by the government’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
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In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in the following three
components:

Net Investments in Capital Assets - This is the component of net position that reports the difference between
capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of debt, excluding
unexpended proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted - The component of net position that reports the constraints placed on the use of assets by either
external parties and/or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted - The difference between the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources that is not reported in Net Investment in Capital Assets or Restricted Net Position.

Change in Accounting Policy

The Commission changed its accounting policy during th I, respect to how the State of Nevada
Treasurer’s interest is accounted for in the General Fund. In vious years, a portion of the interest was
allocated from the General Fund to the other funds in a mann similar to the allocation of overhead
expenses. In the current year, management determined that this allocation to other funds is unnecessary
since the other funds each receive their own allocation of interest from the State of Nevada. This new
method is preferable to the Commission as management believes it more accurately reflects the income
attributable to each fund. The cumulative impact of this change in policy on net fund balance cannot be
determined; therefore, the policy change has been applied prospectively. However, in the current year, the
change in the General Fund balance was approximately $44,000 higher under the new method than it would
have been under the previous alIc4jn method.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

r
Budgetary Information

Biennial budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the accounting policies applied for financial reporting
purposes by the Commission under GAAP except that encumbrances for goods and services not received by
fiscal year end are considered expenditures of the current period solely for budgetary purposes. There were no
encumbrances outstanding at the beginning or end of the year. Although budgets are adopted on a biennial
basis, each year Is treated separately and unexpended budget authorliatlons lapse at each year end.

Prior to September 1 of each even-numbered year, the State’s Director of Administration submits proposed
operating budgets to the Nevada Budget Division covering the biennium beginning the following July 1. After
review of the budgets by the Nevada Budget Division between September 1 and November 15, hearings
involving the Commission, the Director of Administration and the Governor are held between November 15 and
December 22, of each budget year. The biennium budgets are transmitted to the State legislature no later than
the 10th day of the legislative session held In odd-numbered years and, for adjourning, the Legislature enacts the
budgets.
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Net expenditures of the general fund (gross expenditures less amounts allocated to other funds) are controlled
by budget categories (personnel services, travel in-state, travel out-of-state, operating expenses, and capital
outlay for the general fund; and general and administrative and intergovernmental for the special revenue
fund).

Management of the Commission cannot amend any budget categories. However, the Director of Administration
is authorized to approve requests for changes in the budget involving transfers between expenditure categories
not exceeding 10% of originally budgeted expenditures, or $30,000 in the aggregate, of the respective budget
categories. Any changes exceeding 10% or $30,000 require approval of the State Legislature’s Interim Finance
Committee.

Budgetary Information

Following is a brief summary of the covenants included in the bond resolutions of the enterprise funds:

The Commission is required to charge purchasers of services and all users of the State facilities sufficient
amounts to cover all operation and maintenance expenses (except depreciation), all debt service requirements,
and any amounts required to be deposited in reserve accounts.

Monthly transfers for debt service — A debt service account is reiuired to ensure payment of interest and
principal when due. Transfers are made each month from revenues to provide 1/6 of the next semiannual
interest payment and 1/12 of the annual bond principal payment.

A.,

Classes of users — The power marketing fund serves two classes of users, retail utility customers and industrial
customers. The power delivery fund serves the SNWA and its customers.

Other — Other requirements of the bond covenants include maintaining bond funds in separate depository
accounts with the State Treasurer and an audit of the Commission’s financial statements by an independent
certified public accountant.

DurIng the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission complied with all requirements of the bond
covenants.
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At June 30, 2020, the Commission’s carrying amount of restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
was $21,037,549. These deposits with the Treasurer are not categorized as to credit risk, but are fully insured by
the FOIC or collateralized by the State’s financial institutions. Securities used as such collateral must total 102
percent of the deposits with each financial institution.

Note 4- Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents restricted at June 30, 2020, by bond covenants or contractual agreements are
summarized as follows:

F’

Restricted for:
Debt service
Reserve for revenue insufficiency
Cash held by contractual agreement

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Beginning
Balances Increase

Ending
Decrease Balances

Total capital assets beIng
depreciated 180,825 28,140 15 2, 685

Less accumulated depreciation
OffIce equIpment
office furniture and fixtures
Automobiles

45,374
24,854
71,767

Total accumulated depreciation 164,541 5,594 28,140 141,995

Capital assets, net $ 16,284 $ (5,594) $ $ 10,690

r

Total restricted

Note 5 - Capital Assets 4

$ 1,051,894
261,018

1,289,906

$ 2,602,818

a

Governmental Activities
Capital assets being depreciated
Office equipment 45,374 $ - $ $ 45,374
Office furniture and fixtures 25,574

- 720 24,854
Automobiles 109,877 - 27,420 82,457

45,374
25,574 . 720
93,593 S,S94 27,420
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Ending
Decrease Balances

Total capital assets being
depreciated 88. 708. 3 62 77,964 88,786,326

Less accumulated depreciation
Power transmission system
Office equipment
Automobiles

Capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to

Governmental Activities
General government

Business-type Activities
Power marketing
Power delivery

44
Note 6- Balances Due to/from Other Funds

- 43,326,914
- 45,842
- 251,523

43,624,279

The composition of Interfund balances, representing the net of short-term working capital advances and
repayments, as of June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Funds

General
Power marketing
Power delivery

Due From

$
17,534

210,231

5 227,765

Due To

5 227,765

5 227,765

Business-type Activities
Capital assets being depreciated
Power transmission system
Office equipment
Automobiles

Beginning
Balances Increase

$ 88,278,263 $ - $
40,683 8,345

389,416 69,619

$ 88,278,263
49,028

459,035

41,333,418
32,783

210,396

Total accumulated depreciation

1,993,496
13,059
41,122

,68241,576,597

$ 47,131,765

functions/programs as follows:

$ 5,594

317,867
1,729,815

$ - $ 45,162,047

5 2,053,276
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Note 7- Unearned Revenue

The Commission has recognized two primary liabilities for unearned revenue, one each in the two enterprise
funds. One liability is recorded in Power Delivery Project Fund (PDP) and is related to the electric power
transformation and transmission facilities serving the SNWA water treatment and distribution facilities at Lake
Mead and in Henderson, Nevada. The other liability is recorded in the Power Marketing Fund and is related to
the Basic Step-down Yard facilities serving the Commission’s retail Hydropower customers at the industrial
complex also in Henderson at a different location. These liabilities represent customer advance funding for
Commission owned and operated facilities to provide power for their operations.

The POP facilities were constructed through the issuance of State of Nevada General Obligation Bonds in
September of 1997, September of 1999 and in April of 2005. The facilities constructed are dedicated to the
SNWA water related assets and are being used to deliver electric power to the water operations. rhe cost of the
facilities in the form of the bond payment obligation was a component of the charges for power as the
Commission delivered electricity to the SNWA, In 2011 and again in 2015 the SNWA prepaid the debt obligation
and ultimately extinguished the Commission’s Bond liability. This extinguishment constituted a prepayment for
a portion of the future cost of the electric resources related to facility use as power will be delivered in the
future. The Commission recorded the prepayment and recognizes the revenue from the prepayment in concert
with the depreciation of the physical assets to match the revenue to the related depreciation costs as the
facilities are used. Ia

The Basic Step-Down yard facilities wA constructed beginning in 1999 through 2002 and were funded through
assessments on the retail customers as the facilities were built. Due to the number of customers involved there
was no need to enter into debt to fund the construction and the project was completed through customer
advance funding. The facilities and a liability in the form of unearned revenues were recorded and the
depreciation and reventtave bee4econized over the life of the assets from the beginning.

$44,206444 of the total unearned revenue balance at June 30, 2020 relates to construction and facilities and is
being amortized over variols useful lives as determined during construction for Phase I, Phase II and River
Mountains, and over an average life of the 39.5 years for the Basic Step-down Yard. The remaining balance in
unearned revenue primarily relates to amounts received for services not yet rendered as of June 30, 2020.

Future amortization of Unearned Revenue relating to construction and facilities will be recognized as follows:
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2021 $ 1,959,115
2022 1,959,115
2023 1,959,115
2024 1,959,115
2025 1,944,655
2026-2030 9,716,292
2031-2035 9,594,844
2036- 2040 8,523,417
2041- 2045 4,163,256
2045 - 2050 2,202,233
2051-2052 225,287

$ 44,206,444

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission recognized total revenue of $1,959,115 related to the
amortization of construction and facilities unearned revenue.

A

Note 8 - Long-term Debt

General Obligation Bonds —

e
Section 3 of ArticleS of the Nevada State Constitution limits public debt to 2% of the State’s assessed valuation.
The legislature may authorize debt that is not subject to the foregoing limitation to protect and preserve, or
obtain the benefits of, any of its property or ratural resources. The bonded debt incurred to fund the State’s
share of the cost of uprating electrical generating facilities at Hoover Dam does not affect the legal debt margin,
because it was incurred to obtain the benefits of the facility.

On March 12, 2014, because of delays in determining a final allocation of shared costs, interim bonds of
$28,425,000 were Issued to fund the Commission’s expected share of the cost of construction of the visitor’s
center at Hoover Dam, with expenditures charged to prepaid power. In June 2014, the Commission sold the
$29,475,000 Series 2014E General Obligation Refunding bonds, proceeds from which were used to pay off the
interim bonds. These bonds mature annually on October 1, 2015 through 2043, with interest payable semi
annually on October land April 1 at annual rates of .50% to 4.25%.

General obligation bonds outstanding at year end are summarized as follows:

Maturity Interest Outstanding at
Business-type Activities Dates Rates June 30, 2020

General obligation refunding series 20l4E 2015-2043 0.50 to 4.25% $ 26,740,000
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt consisting of general obligation bonds are as
follows:

Total
Principal

S 755,000
770,000
800,000
815,000
835,000

4,655,000
5,610,000
6,580,000
,920,000

July01, 2019 Additions
Governmental Activities r

Accrued compensated absences $ 458109 $ 246,616
Business-type Activities

General obligation bonds 27,480000
Unamortized bond discount (143877)

‘I

Reductions June 30, 2020 Current

$ 186,316 $ $18,409 $ 328,966

740,000 26,740,000 755,000
(5,995) (137,882)

Accrued compensated absences are paid from the general fund.

Note 9 - Risk Management

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Commission participates In the State risk pool and is
liable for payment of nominal deductible amounts. The State then becomes responsible for all losses in excess of
the nominal insurance deductible.

Year ending June 30,

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026- 2030
2031 -2035
2036-2040
2041 -2044

Interest Requirements

$ 1,033,573
1,014,880

993,670
970,653
945,058

4,257,998
3,265,808
1,960,525

515,950

$ 1,788,573
1,784,880
1,793,670
1,785,653
1,780,058
8,912,998
8,875,808
8,540,525
6,435,950

$ 14,958,115

Changes in Long-term Obligations

Changes in long-term obligations during the year ended June 30, 20, are summarized below:

Balance Balance

$ 41,698,115

Total $27,794,232 $ 246,616 $ 920,321 $27,120,527 $1,083,966
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Note 10- Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The Commission may from time to time be a party to various litigation matters. It is management’s opinion,
based upon advice from legal counsel, that the risk of financial losses to the Commission from such litigation, if
any, will not have a material adverse effect on the Commission’s future financial position, results of operations
or cash flows. Accordingly, rio provision has been made for any such losses,

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement

The federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the
Commission. Under this act, an amount may be required to be rebated to the United States Treasury (called
“arbitrage”), for interest on the bonds to qualify for exclusion from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. Rebatable arbitrage is computed as of each installment computation date. The arbitrage rebate
calculation as of the most recent such date indicates that no amount is due. Future calculations might result in
adjustments to this determination.

Note 11- MultIple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefif’Pension Plan

The Commission’s employees are covflby the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), which
was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948, and is governed by the Public
Employees Retirement Board (the PERS Board) whose seven members are appointed by the governor. The
Commission does not exercise any control over PERS.

r.
PERS is a cost-sharing, m![tiple-emp oyer, efined benefit public employees’ retirement system which includes
both regular and police/fire members. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to qualified
employees who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed
or substantially impaired by age or disability.

Benefits, as required by NRS, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at time of retirement
and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months with special provisions for
members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, and July 1, 2015. Benefit payments to which
participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan Include pension benefits, disability benefits,
and survivor benefits.

3S



ATrACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited
year of service prior to July 1,2001. For service earned on and after July 1,2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of
average compensation. For members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier,
and for regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, there is a 2.25% factor. PERS offers
several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired
employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and
various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579, which for members entering the
system before January 1, 2010, is equal to the lessor of:

1, 2% per year following the third anniversary of the commencement of benefits, 3% per year following the
sixth anniversary, 3.5% per year following the ninth anniversary, 4% per year following the twelfth
anniversary and 5% per year following the fourteenth anniversary, or

2. The average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (or the PERS Board approved index) for
the three preceding years.

At—
In any event, a member’s benefit must be increased by the percentages in paragraph 1, above, if the benefit of a
member has not been increased at a rate greater than or equal to the average of the Consumer Price Index (All
Items) (or other PERS Board approved index) for the period between retirement and the date of increase.

1
For members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, the post-retirement increases are the same as
above, except that the increases do not exceed 4% per year.

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service,
or at any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are
eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with 30
years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, are eligible for retirement at age
65 with 5 years of service, or at age 62 with 10 years of service or at age 55 with 30 years of service or any age
with 33 1/3 years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on the monthly benefit allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of
average compensation. Both regular and police/fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon
completion of five years of service.

The authority of establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution rates
rests with NRS. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the employer-pay contribution (EPC) plan prior to July
1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two alternative contribution plans. Contributions are shared equally
by employer and employee in which employees can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the
employer or can make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer.

The PERS basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as of percentage of
salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime In order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when
due,
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PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis for determining the prospective funding contribution
rates required to fund the system on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance
with the required rates established by NRS. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS
286.421 and 286.450. The actuarial funding method used is the entry age normal cost method. It is intended to
meet the funding objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage
of salary.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the required contribution rates for regular members were 15.25 percent and
29.25 percent for employer/employee matching and EPC, respectively. Contributions to the pension plan from
the Commission were $465,000 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

PERS collective net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. For this purpose,
certain actuarial valuation assumptions are stipulated by GASB and may vary from those used to determine the
prospective funding contribution rates.

The total PERS pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions (based on the results
of an experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016 dated October 16, 2017), applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate 2.75%
Payroll Growth 5.00% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.5%
Productivity Pay Increase 0.5% r

Consumer Price Index — 2.75%
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal and level percentage of payroll
Projected Salary Increases Regular: 4.25% to 9.15%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 4.55% to 13.90%, depending on service
‘ Rates include inflation and productivity increases

Other Assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2019 funding actuarial valuation

Mortality rates (Regular and Police/Fire) — For healthy members it is the Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Table projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries. For
ages less than SO, mortality rates are based on the Headcount — Weighted RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables.
Those mortality rates are adjusted by the ratio of the mortality rate for healthy annuitants at age 50 to the
mortality rate for employees at age 50. The mortality rates are then projected to 2020 with Scale MP•2016.

The mortality table used In the actuarial valuation to project mortality rates for all disabled regular members Is
the Headcount — Weighted RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, set forward four years.

For pre-retirement members It is the Headcount — Weighted RP-2014 Employee Table, projected to 2020 with
Scale MP-2016.

The RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Mortality Tables, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries,
reasonably reflect the projected mortality experience of the Plan as of the measurement date. The additional
projection of 6 years isa provision made for future mortality Improvement.
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PERS’s policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS
Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of
PERS. The Following target asset allocation policy was adopted as of June 30, 2019:

Long-term Geometric
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return *

Domestic equity 42% 5.50%
International equity 18% 5.50%
Domestic fixed income 28% 075%
Private markets 12% 6.65%

* These geometric return rates are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by adding the long-term expected inflation rate of 2.75%.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% as of June 30, 2019. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be
made at the rate specified by NRS. Based on the assumption, PERS’s fiduciary net position at June 30, 2019, was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.50%) was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2019.

The Commission’s proportionates of the net p1on liability at year end, calculated using the discount rate
of 7.50%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is ° lower (6.50%) or 1% higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate
was as follows: ‘.

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

Net pension liability $ 9,268,638 $ 5,986,027 $ 3,257,344

Detailed Information about PERS fiduciary net position Is available in the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report, available on the PERS website, www.nvpers.org under publications.

The Commission’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability was $5,986,027 which
represents 0.04390% of the collective net pension liability, which is a decrease from the previous year’s
proportionate share of 0.04395%. Contributions for employer pay dates within the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019, were used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share. Each employer’s proportion
of the net pension liability Is based on their employer contributions relative to the total employer contributions
for all employers for the period ended June 30, 2019.
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission’s pension expense was $544,410 and its
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions were as follows:

reported deferred

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments
Changes in proportion and differences between actual contributions

and proportionate share of contributrions
Contributions subsequent to measurement date

Deferred
Outflows

of Resources

$ 224,469
243,606

150,075
465,000

$ 1,083,150

of

Deferred
Inflows
Resources

$ 172,659

297,783

95,238

$ 565,680

A
At June 30, 2019, the average expected remaining service life was 6.18 years.

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date totaling $465,000 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2021. ‘I

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized In
pension expense as follows: 3

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 4,489

5 52,470

Note 12 - Employee Benefit Plans —

Plan Description — The employees of the Commission participate in a costsharing, multipleemployer, defined
benefit postemployment plan administered by the Board of the Public Employees’ Benefits Program of the State
of Nevada (PEP). NRS 287,023 provides officers and employees eligible to be covered by any group insurance,
plan of benefits or medical and hospital service established pursuant to NRS 287 the option upon retirement to
cancel or continue any such coverage. The cost to administer the program Is financed through the contributions
and investment earnings of the plan. The PEBP Board is granted the authority to establish and amend the
benefit terms of the program. (NRS 287.043) PEBP Issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and the required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained
from Public Employees’ Benefits Program, 901 South Stewart Street, Suite 1001, Carson City, Nevada 89701.

$ 24,306
(101,880)

51,313
44,825
29,417

Total
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Year Ended June 30, 2020

Benefits Provided - Employees of the Commission, who meet the eligibility requirements for retirement and, at
the time of retirement, are participants in the program, have the option upon retirement to continue group
insurance pursuant to NAC 287.530. NRS 287.0436 establishes a subsidy to pay an amount toward the cost of
the premium or contribution for persons retired from the Commission. Retirees assume any portion of the
premium not covered by the State, The current subsidy rates can be found at pebp.state.nv.us. Benefits include
health, prescription drug, dental, and life insurance coverage. As required by statute, benefits are determined
by the number of years of service at the time of retirement and the individual’s initial date of hire. Employees
hired after December 31, 2011 are not eligible to receive subsidies to reduce premiums. The following
individuals and their dependents are eligible to receive subsidies:

Any PEBP covered retiree with the Commission whose last employer was the state and who:
• Was initially hired prior to January 1, 2010 and has at least five years of public service: or

• Was initially hired on or after January 1, 2010, but before January 1, 2012 and has at least fifteen
years of public service: or

• Was initially hired on or after January 1, 2010, but before January 1, 2012 and has at least five years
of public service and has a disability: or

Any PEBP covered retiree whose last employer was not the state and who has been continuously covered under
PEBP as a retiree since November 30, 2008.

4 e
IL

Contributions - The State allocates funds for payment of current and future post-employment benefits other
than pensions as a percentage of budgeted payrolls to all State agencies. The required contribution rate for
employers, as a percentage of covered payroll, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was 0.0234. For the year
ended June 30, 2020, these payments totaled $72,666 for the Commission.

OPEB liabilities, OPEB expense, deferred outflows of resources ond deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
the Commission’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability used to calculate
the net OPEB liability was determined by actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The Commission’s proportion
of the net OPEB liability was based on the Commission’s share of contributions to PEBP relative to the total
contributions of all participating employers. At June 30, 2020 the Commission’s proportion was 0.1627 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission recognized OPEB expense of $123,598. At June 30, 2020, the
Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions $ 48,851 $ 96,842
Net difference between projected and actual earnings - 40,891
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 72,666 -

Total $ 121,S17 $ 137,733
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Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date in the amount of $72,666 will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year
ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ (45,278)
2021 (37,633)
2022 (7,660)
2023 1,689

Total $ (88,882)

Actuarial Methods and Assumption- The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Inflation Rate 2.50%
Salary Increases 0.50% productivity pay increase, 2.68% average promotional;

increase ¶%
Investment Rate of Return 3.51%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 7.5% tial, 4.5% ultimate

Mortality rates for healthy individuals were based on the RP-2014 combined healthy mortality projected to 2020
with scale MP-2016, For healthy post-retirement individuals, same assumptions were used, set forward one year
for spouses and beneficiaries. Mortality rates for disabled individuals were based on the RP-2014 disabled
retiree mortality projected to 2020 with scale MP-2016, set forward 4 years.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based upon certain demographic and other
actuarial assumptions as recommended by the actuary, in conjunction with the State and guidance from the GASB
statement.

Discount Rote - The discount rate basis under GASB 75 15 required to be consistent with a 20-Year Municipal
Bond Index. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index Is used for the determination of
the discount rate. The assets in the trust as of June 30, 2019 are less than the expected benefit payments In the
first year; therefore, the crossover period is assumed to be in the first year, which provides additional support
for continuing the discount rate at the 20-Year Municipal Bond Index rate. The discount rate used to measure
the total OPEB liability was 351%.
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Sensitivity of the OPEB liabilities to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the net OPEB liabilities
of the plans, as well as what each plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.51 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.51 percent) than the current
discount rate:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Discount Discount Rate in Discount
Rate 2.51% Rate 3.51% Rate 4.51%

$ 2,499,732 $ 2,267,166 $ 2,065,390

Sensitivity of the OPEB liabilities to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates- The following presents the net OPEB
liabilities of the plans, as well as what each plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare
cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost
trend rates:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase in
in Healthcare Healthcare in Healthcare

\Sosts

Trend Costs Trend Costs Trend
— Rate Rate Rate

$ 2,103,441 $ 2,267,166 $ 2,461,652

OPEB plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued audited annual financial statements of the State of Nevada State Retirees’ Health and
Welfare Benefits Fund, Public Employees’ Benefits Program financial report.

r

Note 13- Joint Venture 1

The Commission is a member of the Silver State Energy Association (SSEA). SSEA was established as a joint
venture through an interiocal agreement among the member agencies (Members), which, in addition to the
Commission, include the City of Boulder City, Lincoln Power District No. 1, Overton Power District No. S and the
SNWA.

SSEA is an association of public agencies with the common goal of jointly planning, developing, owning and
operating power resources to meet their own needs and those of their customers. The economies of scale
produced by the SSEA offer improved project development opportunities and power purchasing capabilities, the
sharing of resources and expertise, and the opportunity for jointly managed energy needs.

As appropriate projects are selected for development, the Members Involved in each project enter into a project
service agreement (PSA) Indicating each participating Member’s allocatIon of project costs.

The business and Dther affairs of the SSEA are conducted by a Board of Directors consisting of one director
appointed by each Member. The appointed director may, but need not be, a member of the governing body of
the Member.
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Financial information regarding SSEA can be obtained by writing:

Manager of Energy Accounting for
the Silver State Energy Association

P.O. Box 99956, MS 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89193-9956

The SSEA website is www.silverstateenergy.org/.

Note 14- Related Party

The Commis5ion is governed by seven commissioners, three of whom appointed by the Southern Nevada
Water Authority (SNWA) and four, including the board Chair, appointed by the Governor. The Commission and
SNWA do not share staff members or members of management. The SNWA, a local governmental organization,
is also one of the Commission’s principal revenue payers (see Table 5 in Statistical Section). In fiscal 2020, the
Commission received revenues from the SNWA for power and water resources but made no payments to the
SNWA for any purpose. The SNWA publishes a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be seen on
their website at SNWA.com. In addition, the Commission’s capacities work with other public entities, SNWA,
other states, and various governmental entities in fulfilling its statutory responsibilities; however, no other
entity has representatives on the board. In fiscal 2Q6NWA accounted for revenue of $11,713,784.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability Information

Multiple — Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years*

Proportionate
share of the PERS

Proportionate collective net fiduciary net
Proportion of share of the pension liability position as a
the collective collective net as a percentage percentage of

Valuation Date net pension pension Covered of covered the total pension
June 30, liability liability (asset) payroll payroll liability

2014 004795% $ 6,305,091 $ 2,348,229 268.50% 76.31%
2015 0,04795% 4,997,140 2,531,235 197.42% 75.13%
2016 0.04902% 6,596,117 2,575,317 256.13% 72.23%
2017 0.04412% 5,867,314 2,701,732 217.17% 74.40%
2018 0.04395% 5,993,734 2,856,435 209.83% 75.21%
2019 0.04390% 5,986,027 2,970,488 201.52% 76.46%

Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan is not available for years prior to
the year ended June 30, 2014. As the information becomes available, this schedule will ultimately present
information for the ten most recent fiscal years.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statutorily Required Employer Contribution Information

Multiple — Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years

Contributions
in relation to Contributions

Statutorily the statutorily Contribution as a percentage
required required deficiency Covered of covered

Fiscal Year contribution contributions (excess) payroll payroll

2014 $ 527,504 $ 527,504 $ - $ 2,348,299 22.46%
2015 507,091 507,091 - 2,531,235 20.03%
2016 523,411 523,411 - 2,575,317 20.32%
2017 395,979 395,979 - 2,701,732 14.66%
2018 406,477 406,477 - 2,856,435 14.23%
2019 423,042 423,042 - 2,970,488 14.24%
2020 460,007 465,000 - 3,091,661 15.04%

‘ Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan is not available for years
prior to the year ended June 30, 2014. As the information becomes available, this schedule will ultimately
present information for the ten most recent fiscal years.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Schedule of Commission Contributions for Other Postemployment Benefits

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Year5 ‘

2018 2019 2020

Commission’s proportion of the net OPEB liability 01740% 01675% 01627%

Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 2,261,443 2,218,398 2,267,166

Commission’s covered payroll 2,891,310 3,167,417 3,105,221

Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll 78.2152% 70.0381% 73.0114%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability 11.3300% 0.1205% 0.0166%

* GASS Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until
ten years of data is available, CRC will present information only for those years which information
is available.
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Schedule of Changes in Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years *

2018 2019 2020

Contractually required contribution $ 68,235 $ 52,354 $ 72,662
Contributions in relation to the contractually required

contribution 66,117 69,279 72,666

Contribution excess (deficiency) (2,118) 16,925 4

Commissions covered payroll $ 2,749,712 $ 3,167,417 $ 3,105,221

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll
2.48% 165% 2.34%

* GASB Statement No, 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until
ten years of data is available, CRC will present information only for those years which information
is available.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Colorado River Commission
Las Vegas, Nevada

Report on the FInancial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free fro aterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AudItor’s ResponsIbIlity Cad
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major
fund of the Commission as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the
Research and Development Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress for the OPEB liability, and pension trend data on
pages XX through XX and XXX through XXX be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and pension and OPEB
trend data, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information —

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and
statistical section shown on pagesXX through xx and XX through XX are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Introductory
section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them,
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated XXXXXXXXXX
on our consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with GovernmentAuditing Standards in considering
the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

EB Signature

Las Vegas, Nevada
xxxxxxxxxxx
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards

To the Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Colorado River Commission
Las Vegas, Nevada

r
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in GovernmentAuditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
(the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated XXXXXXXXXX.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commission’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s
internal control. P -1I4.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or signIficant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies In internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commissions financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EB Signature

Las Vegas, Nevada

xxxxxx xx
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DATE

To the Governing Body of the
Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated [Datej . Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our letter dated September 28, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Commission solely for the purpose
of determining our audit procedures and not to vide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating si illeriatters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not requir to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

Planned Scope and TimIng of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
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Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the
engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Commission is included in Note ito the financial
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies during 2020.

As disclosed in Note ito the financial statements, the Commission changed its accounting policy
during the year with respect to how the State of Nevada Treasurer’s interest is accounted for in the
General Fund. In previous years, a portion of the interest was allocated from the General Fund to the
other funds in a manner similar to the allocation of overhead expenses. In the current year,
management determined that this allocation to other funds is unnecessary since the other funds each
receive their own allocation of interest from the State of Nevada. This new method is preferable to
the Commission as management believes it more accurately reflects the income attributable to each
fund. The cumulative impact of this change in accounting policy on net position! net fund balance
cannot be determined; However, in the current year, the change in the General Fund balance was
approximately $44,000 higher under the new method than it would have been under the previous
allocation method.

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to
Inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the
effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from
management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

• Other postemployment benefit plans actuarial accrued liabilities
• Pension plans’ actuarial accrued liabilities

2
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We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that it
is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the
Commission’s financial statements relate to the disclosures associated with the defined benefit pension
plan and the other post-employment benefits. These are sensitive because they represent a significant
percentage of the liabilities presented on the statement of net position.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require
us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the
relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a
whole. —

The following misstat ins that we identified as a result of our audit procedures were brought to
the
attention of, and corrected by, ma ment:

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 9
To coectclesslficflon of eçenie.

296-4490-04-7100 WATER STATE OWNED BLDG RNT-B&G 35,218.00

296-4490.04-7060 wAter BCE Contrncts 35,218.00

Total 35,218.00 35218.00

GASBEntriesJE#10

To correct tie capital asset disposal In 0*88 .nb’y.

296-4490-00-1853 NO - ,Aajtomoblles 54,840.00

296-4490-04-7640 Deproclatlon eçonao - gornmontnl ocb4Uoi 27,420.00

GA-EB-1803 kilomobllas 27,420.00

Total 54,840.00 54140.00

:3
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The following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the
current and prior periods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

General Fund and GovernmentalActivities
Certain revenues were recorded in the improper period, resulting in an understatement of
receivables of $12,632, an understatement of revenues of $7,161, and an understatement of fund
balance / net position of $5,471.

Government Activities Only
The adjustments made for OPEB did not take the impact of the implicit subsidy into account, resulting
in an understatement of deferred outflow of resources of $20,661, understatement of beginning net
position of $20,356, and overstatement of expenses of $305.

Power Delivery Fund and Business-Type Activities P
A vehicle purchase was accrued to an expense account in fiscal year 2020 when the vehicle was not
delivered until fiscal year 2021. This resulted in an overstatement of accounts payable and expenses
of $49,733.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements is described above for each respective fund as well as
the government-wide financial statements. —

Disagreements with Management
—

For purposes of this letter, ;rofessional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, which could be significant to the Commission’s financial statements or the auditor’s
report, No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management which are included in the
management representation letter dated “(date of management representation letter)”

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

in some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or issues

4
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In the normal course of our professional association with the Commission, we generally discuss a variety
of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating
conditions affecting the entity, and operating plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the
Commission’s auditors.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents
containing the Commission’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial
information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to
corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with such standards, we have read the
other information and considered whether such information, or the manner of its presentation, was
materially inconsistent with its presentation in the financial statements.

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information,
or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its
presentation, appearing in the financial statements. -4

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, the Finance
Committee, and management of Colorado River Commission of Nevada and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

S
tide Bailly Signature’

Las Vegas, Nevada
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted $ 14192971 $ 4,241,760 $ 18,434,731
Receivables

Accounts 15,560 1,921,600 1,937,160
Accrued interest 79,466 32,511 111,977

Internal balances 227,765 (227,765) -

Prepaid items 16,547 494,454 511,001
Current portion of prepaid power

________________

1,686,284 1,686,284

Total current assets 14,532,309 8,148,844 22,681,153

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 2,602,818 2,602,818
Capital assets being depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation 10,690 45,162,047 45,172,737
Prepaid power, net of current portion - 23,863,942 23,863,942

Total noncurrent assets 10,690 11,528,807 71,639,497
A

Total assets 14,542,999 79,777,551 94,320,650

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to OPEB

‘
121,517 - 121,517

Deterred amounts related to pensions 1,083,150 - 1,083,150

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,204,667 - 1,204.667

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 15,747,666 $ 79,777,651 $ 95,525,311

liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 198,888 $ 2,785,214 $ 2,984,102
Accrued payroll 181,463 - 181,463
Unearned revenue 59,763 3,154,988 3,213,751
Payable to customers - 1,726,683 1,726,683
Customer collateral and other deposits - 1,196,235 1,196,235
Current portion of accrued compensated absences 328,966 328,966
Current portion of bonds payable - 755,000 755,000
Accrued interest

_______________

260,564 260,564

Total current liabilities 768,080 9,878,684 10,646,764

Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable, net of current portion - 25,847,118 25,847,118
Unearned revenue, net of current portion

- 42,241,331 42,247,331
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 189,443 189,443
Net OPEB liabilIty 2,267,165 - 2,167,165
Net pension liabIlity 5986,027

________________

5,986,027

Total noncurrent liabilities 8,442,635 68,094,449 76,537,084

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 137,733 - 137,733
Deferred amounts related to pensIons 565,680 - 565,680

Total deferred inflows of resources 701,413 - 703,413

Total liabilities and deferred Inflows of resources 9,914,128 77,973,133 87,887,261

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 10,690 45,162,047 45,172,731
Restricted for research and revelopment 11,810,958 - I 1,810,958
unrestrIcted (5,988,110) (43,357,529) (49,345,639)

Total net positIon 5,933,538 1,804,518 7,538,056

Total liabilities, deferred Inflows of resources and not position $ 15,747,666 5 19,777,651 $ 95,525,317

See Notes to Financial Statements 14
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program
Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities
General government
Research and development

Business-type Activities
Power marketing
Power delivery

Total

$ 2,853,053
425,556

3,278,609

28,095,112
16,101,489

44,196,601

$ 47,475,210

General Revenues
Investment income
Gain on disposition of

property and equipment
Miscellaneous

$ 59,946 $ -

294,829 -

354,775 -

(34,381)

______________

(54,184)

_______________

(88,565)

______________

(88,565)

$ 59,946
294,829

354,775

(34,381)
(54,184)

(88,565)

266,210

2,806
67,385

592,558

858,768

6,779,288

$ 7,638056

Functions/Programs

Charges for Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Activities Activities Total

$ 2,912,999
720,385

3,633,384

28,060,731
16,047,305

44,108,036

$ 47,741,420

L

“II -

354,775

382,851

2,806
67,385

453,042

807,817

5,025,721

$ 5,833,538

139,516 522,367

a
Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending
— I

139,516

50,951

1,753,567

$ 1,804,518

See Notes to Financial Statements 15
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2020

Research and
Development Total

Special Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,389,299 $ 11,803,672 $ 14,192,971
Receivables

Accounts 15,560 - 15,560
Accrued interest 13,417 66,049 79,466

Prepaid Items 16,547 - 16,547
Due from Other Funds 227,765 - 227,765

Total assets $ 2,662,588 $ 11,869,721 $ 14,532,309

Liabilities and Fund Balances r
V.

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 198,888 $ - $ 198,888
Accrued payroll r 181,463 - 181,463
Unearned revenue

- 58,763 58,763

Total liabilities 380,351 58,763 439,114

Fund Balances
Nonspendable - prepaid items — — 16,547 - 16,547
Restricted for research and development

- 11,810,958 11,810,958
Unassigned — 2,265,690 - 2,265,690

Total fund balance5 2,282,237 11,810,958 14,093,195

Total liabilities and fund balances r $ 2,562,588 $ 11869,721

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because
long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current
period are not reported in the funds.

Accrued compensated absences $ (518,409)
Net OPEB liability (2,267,165)
Net pension liability (5,986,027)

(8, 77 1,601)

Deferred outflows and Inflows of resources related to pensions and
OPEB are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not
reported In the funds,

Oeferred Inflows of resources related to OPEB (137,733)
Deferred Inflows of resources related to pensIons (565,680)
Oeferced outflows of resources related to OPEB 121,517
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensIons 1083,150

501.2 54
Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in

the governmental funds as expenditures. For governmental
activities, these costs are capitalized In the statement of net position
and depreciated over their estimated useful lIves. 10,690

Net position of governmental activities 5 5,833,538

See Notes to Financial Statements 16
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Research and
Development Total

Special Governmental
General Fund Revenue Fund Funds

Revenues

Charges for services $ 2,912,999 $ - $ 2,912,999
Investment income 66,435 316,416 382,851
Multi-species surcharge

- 720,385 720,385
Miscellaneous 67,385 - 67,385

Total revenues 3,046,819 1,036,801 4,083,620

Expenditures r
V

Current
General administration 5,683,653 - 5,683,653
Less salaries and overhead recovered by allocation (2,985,122) (2,985,122)

Net general administration expenditures P 2,698,531 - 2,698,531

Multi-species assessment - 425,556 425,556
Water purchases 13,258 - 13,258

Total expenditures 2,711,789 425,556 3,137,345

Other financing sources —

Proceed from the sale of asset 2,806 - 2,806

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) —
expenditures and change in fund balances 337,836 511,245 949,081

Fund balances, beginning r 1,944,401 11,199,713 13,144,114

Fund balances, ending $ 2,282,237 $ 11,810,958 $ 14,093,195

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because

change In fund balances, governmental funds $ 949,081

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
In the statement of activities the cost of those assets Is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense This Is the amount by which depreciation expense was greater
than capital outlays In the current period. (5,594)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change In accrued compensated absences (60,301)
Change in net OPEB liability and related deferred

outflows and inflows of resources 14,486
change in net pension liability and related deferred

outflows and inflows of resources (89,855)
(135,670)

change In net position of governmental activities $ 801,817

See Notes to Financial Statements 17
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2020

variance
Budget with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues

Power administrative charge $ 2,363,229 $ 2,363,229 $ 1,589,854 $ (773,375)
Water charges 2,205,893 2,205,893 1,323,145 (882,748)
Investment income 80,202 80,202 66,435 (13,767)
Miscellaneous 59,347 59,347 67,385 8,038

Total revenues 4,708,671 4,708,671 3,046,819 (1,661,852)
p

Expenditures

Current IF Ii

General government
Personnel services 5,306,863 5,306,863 4,309,103 997,760
Travel

Out-of-state 56,889 56,889 36,289 20,600
In-state 9,485 9,485 2,518 6,967

Operating
Rent and insurance 146,091 146,091 147,679 (1,588)
Dues and registration fees 71,215 —— 71,215 75,082 (3,867)
Contractual services 759,207

.‘
759,207 140,385 618,822

Other 4 261,880 263,280 274,023 (10,743)
Legal

A
‘ 609,844 609,844 609,465 379

Equipment, furniture and software i 159,472 159,472 89,109 70,363
Water purchases 13,255 14,155 13,258 897

Total expenditures 7,394,201 7,396,501 5,696,911 1,699,590
S

less salaries and overhead
recovered by allocation (2,725,577) (2,725,577) (2,985,122) 259,545

Net expenditures 4,668,624 4,670,924 2,711,789 1,959,135

r
Other financing sources

Proceeds from sale of asset - - 2,806 2,806

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
and change In fund balance 40,047 37,741 337,836 300,089

Fund balance, beginnIng 1,692,571 1,932,745 1,944,401 11,656

Fund balance, ending $ 1,732,618 $ 1,970,492 $ 2,282,237 $ 311,745

See Notes to FinancIal Statements 18
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual

Research and Development Special Revenue Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Investment income
Multi-species surcharge

Total revenues

Original

$

p’

978,948

978,948

$

425,556

425,556

Variance
with

BudgetFinal

$ 97,969
(28,631)

69,338

553,392

553,392

622,730

14,834

$ 637,564

Revenues

Budget
Final Actual

$ 185,520 218,447 316,416
749,016 749,016 720,385

934,536 967,463 1,036,801

978,948

978,948

Expenditures

Multi-species assessment

Net expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
and change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

(44,412) ‘1,485)

10,557,285 11,184,879

$ 10,512,873 $ 11,173,394

A’

611,245

11,199,713

$ 11,810,958

See NQtes to Financial Statements 19
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Net Position

Business-type Activities

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2020

Assets

Power
Marketing

Enterprise Funds
Power

Delivery Totals

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted
Receivables

Accounts
Accrued interest

Prepaid items
Current portion of prepaid power

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets

Power transmission system, net
Automobiles and equipment, net

Prepaid power, net of current portion

Liabilities

Total non current assets

Total assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Payable to customers
Customer collateral and other deposits
Current portion of bonds payable
Due to other funds
Accrued interest

Total current liabilities

$ 2,669,070

886,626
24,532

444,647
1,685,284

5,711, 159

4—
2,281,098

6,887,139

23,863,942

33,032,179

$ 38,743,338

$ 1,809,537
1,429,554

60,971
1,168,575

755,000
17,534

250,564

5,501,735

$ 1,572,690

1,034,974
7,979

49,807

2,665,450

321,720

38,064,210
210,698

38,596,628

$ 41,262,078

$ 975,677
1,725,434
1,665,712

27,660

2 10,23;

4,604,714

$ 4,241,760

1,921,600
32,511

494,454
1,686,284

8,376,609

2,602,818

44,951,349
210,698

23,863,942

71,628,807

$ 80,005,416

$ 2,785,214
3,154,988
1,726,683
1,196,235

755,000
227,765
250,554

10,106,449

Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Unearned revenue

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

37,207,601

6,887,139
(5,351,402)

1,535,737

$ 38,743,338

40,993,297

38,274,908
(38,006,127)

268,781

$ 41,262,078

78200,898

45,162,047
(43,357,529)

1,804,518

$ 80,005,416

25,847,118
5,858,748

31,705,866

- 25,847,118
36,388,583 42,247,331

36,388,583 68,094,449

See Notes to Financial Statements 20
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Operating Revenues
Power sales $ 28,060,731 $ 16,047,305 $ 44,108,036

Operating Expenses
Power purchases
Prepaid power advances
Depreciation
General administration

Total operating expenses

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
lnestment income

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, Ending

1,476,214

$ 1,535,737

1,753,567

$ 1,804,518

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Power
Marketing

Power
Delivery Totals

Operating income (loss)

25,817,589 11,173,479 36,991,068
1,684,284 - 1,684,284

317,867 1,729,815 2,047,682
275,372 3,198,195 3,473,567

28,095,112 16,101,489 44,196,601

(34,381)

93,904

(54,184)

45,612

(88,565)

139,516

59,523 (8,572) 50,951

277,353

$ 268,781

See Notes to Financial Statements 21
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statement of Cash flows

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities

Power
Marketing

Enterprise Funds
Power

Delivery Totals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services

$ 27,321,652
(26,090,609)

$ 14,371,403
(14,370,378)

$ 41,693,055
(40,460,987)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,231,043 1,025 1,232,068

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash used for debt service:

Principal
Interest

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

(740,000)
(1,049,840)

r
(1,789,840)

- (740,000)
- (1,049,840)

(1,789,840)

Net change In cash and cash equivalents
(restricted and unrestricted)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning
A

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating ActivitiesA
Operating loss
Depreciation
Gain on sale of capital assets
Amortization of prepaid power
Amortization of unearned revenue - power transmission
Amortization of bond premiums and discounts
(increase) decrease In operating assets

Accounts receivable
Prepaid items

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Payable to customers
Customer collateral and other deposits
Due to other funds
Accrued interest

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 1,231,043 $ 1,025 $ 1.232,068

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds received on sale of capital assets
Investment income received

Net cash provided (used )by investing activitie

(77,964) (77,964)

—
— 113,452 51,622

113,452 (26,342)

(445,345) (25,317)

5,395,513 1,919,727

$ 4,950,168 $ 1,894,410

$ (34,381) $ (54,184)
317,867 1,729,815

165,074

87,110

(470,662)

7,315,240

$ 6,844,578

$ (88,565)
2,047,682

1,809,943
(1,959,116)

5,995

(583,348)
36,090

(17,461)
(104,855)

96,154
8,322

(14,981)
(3,792)

1,809,943
(283,488)

5,995

(313,339)
39,428

(50,072)
(59,726)

(284,233)
73,845
12,996
(3,792)

(1,675,628)

(270,009)
(3,338)

32,611
(45,129)
380,387
(65,523)
(27,977)

See Notes to Financial Statements 22
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) is responsible for managing the State of Nevada’s
interests in the water and power resources available from the Colorado River.

Seven commissioners have broad statutory authority to govern the Commission, which constitutes the reporting
entity. The Commission, as a component unit of the State of Nevada (Nevada or the State), is also an integral
part of that reporting entity. There are no other entities for which the Commission is financially accountable,
thus requiring them to be reported as component units of the Commission.

All of the Commission’s cash receipts and disbursements are processed and recorded by the State’s Controller.
Budgetary and cash controls are imposed by the State Controller on the Commission’s general and special
revenue funds, while other State-imposed cash control requirements apply to the Commission’s enterprise
funds. The Commission maintains its own revenue, expense and eral journals and a general ledger.

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus, and Basis of Acc nting

Bask of Presentation —

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (GAAP) applicable to government units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), principally GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis —for State and Local Governments, as amended, along with related pronouncements. The GASB is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The Commission is not subject to regulation by federal or state utility regulatory bodies such as the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission or the Nevada Public Utilities Commission.

I.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures, some of which may require revisions in future periods.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.

Government-wide financial statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information on all of the activities of the Commission. Eliminations have been made where appropriate to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the Commission’s
governmental and business-type activities, Governmental activities generally are financed through Inter
governmental revenues and other exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed primarily by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to that particular program or function. Certain Indirect costs are included in the program expense
reported for individual functions and activities. Program revenues consist of charges paid by the recipients of
services offered by the programs. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as
general revenues.

23



AUACHMENT A

Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Fund financial statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Commission’s funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary — are presented. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
Any remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues of proprietary funds include investment earnings and revenues
resulting from ancillary activities.

The Commission reports the following major governmental funds:

Generalfund — The general fund is the Commission’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Research and Development fund — This fund is used to actt for the Lower Colorado River Multi-Species
Conservation Program (LCRMSCP or MSCP), a fifty-year program that provides for Endangered Species Act (ESA)
compliance. The program is administered by the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) and the Fish and
Wildlife Service. Program costs are paid by the USSR and the States of Nevada, California and Arizona. Nevada’s
share of Program funding is paid partially by the Southern Nevada Water Authority (paid directly to the IJSBR),
and partially by the Commission’s hydropower customers. The fund accounts for the collection and remittance
of the Hydropower customers’ portion of the program. In addition, certain program reserves are maintained in
the fund for future MSCP needs. These reserves are contractually committed to the MSCP program.

a
Additionally, the Commission reports the following major enterprise funds:

Power marketing enterprise fund. This funperates as a public utility and accounts for the activities of
providing electrical power generated at a federal facility to its customers.

Power delivery enterprise fund. This fund is used to account for the construction and operation of power
transmission equipment for the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA).

M.asur.m.nI Focus and Bails of Accounting

Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. For the year ended June 30, 2020, there were no non-exchange
transactions those for which the Commission gives, or receives, value without directly receiving, or giving, equal
value in exchange) reported in the accompanying financial statements.
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Governmentalfund financial statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, principally charges for services and
investment income, are susceptible to accrual and, therefore, recognized when measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within sixty days after year end. Expenditures
generally are recorded when the related liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-
term debt, claims and judgments, pension liabilities, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures only when payment is due. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

It is the Commission’s policy to use restricted resources first when both restricted and unrestricted (unassigned)
resources are available for use, and then unrestricted (unassigned) resources as needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Cash Equivalents
AL

The Commission’s restricted and unrestricted cash is deposited with the State Treasurer (the Treasurer) in a
fund similar to an external investment pool (Notes 3 and 4). Because the amounts deposited with the Treasurer
are sufficiently liquid to permit withdrawals in the form of cash at any time without prior notice or penalty, they
are deemed to be cash equivalents. —.

State statutes authorize the Treasurer aest the Commission’s deposits in certain obligations of the United
States of America, or its agencies or instrumentalities, and of state and local governments, as well as other
financial instruments specified in Section 355.170 of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). The Treasurer is also
permitted by statute to lend its secu’ to broker-dealers and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to
return the collateral for the sami sin the future. The Commission had no outstanding securities lending
transactions as of June 30, 2020.

Deposit values reflect unrealized gains and losses on invested funds as reported by the Treasurer,

Receivables and Poyables

All outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”.

Since sales are made only to customers who are known to have acceptable credit and no bad debts have ever
been sustained, an allowance for uncollectible accounts is not considered to be necessary.

Prepald Power

The Commission has participated with the State In funding the Improvement and renovation (“uprating”) of the
electrical power generation plant and visitors’ center at Hoover Dam, which supplies the majority of the power
sold through the power marketing fund. These costs are to be reimbursed In the form of power consumption
and charged to expense over the estimated useful lIfe of 30 years.
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Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

The various resources that are limited as to use by bond covenants for debt service, operation and maintenance
(O&M), and capital improvement and construction (acquisition) are classified as restricted cash and cash
equivalents. Net position is restricted to the extent restricted assets exceed related liabilities and contractually
with regard to certain operations and maintenance costs.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost, Donated capital assets
are reported at acquisition value. The capitalization threshold is $5,000.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed, Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities, if any, is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets of the Commission are depreciated using the straight-line method over their useful lives currently
estimated as follows:

Governmental Activities 4” — Years
Office equipment 5
Office furniture and fixtures 5
Automobiles 4—6

Business-type Activities Years
Power transmission systems 10—50
Office equipment S
Automobiles 4 — 6

Estimated useful lives are determined by the State and the Commission has no authority to alter the estimated
useful lives prescribed by the State.

Comp.nsat.d Abs.nc..

It is the Commission’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits, All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured,
for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements,

Multipl.-Employ.r Cost-Skating Ddin.d 5.n.f ii P.nsion Plan

The Commission uses the same basis used in the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada’s (PERS)
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for reporting its proportionate share of the PERS collective net pension
liability, deferred outflows and Inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, Including
Information related to PERS fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (Including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized by PERS when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. PERS
Investments are reported at fair value.
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Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future
periods; and therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
government-wide statement of net position reports 1) the changes in proportion and differences between
actual contributions and proportionate share of contributions related to pensions, which will be amortized over
the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pension benefits, 2) the net
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, which are deferred and
amortized over five years, and 3) contributions for pensions and OPEB made subsequent to the measurement
date, which will be recognized in the subsequent year.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future periods(s) and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government-wide statement of
net position reports 1) the differences between expected and actual experience and changes of assumptions,
which will be amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with
pension benefits, 2) the net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments, which will be
amortized over five years, and 3) changes in assumptions or other inputs to the total OPEB liability which are
deferred and amortized over the average expected remaini ervice life of all employees that are provided with
health benefits.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue represents advanced funding to the Commission from certain customers for the construction
of electric power facilities to provide power for the customer’s operations. These facilities are dedicated to the
exclusive use of those customers and are the only existing method of delivery of electrical resources for their
operations. Recovery of the cost of the facilities is a component of the cost of power resources provided and Is
being recognized over the life of the assets as the assets are consumed (depreciated).

Long-term Obligations

In the accompanying government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Issuance costs are expensed as incurred.

Fund Equity or N.t Poililon

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report five classifications of fund balance. Nonspendable
are amounts that are not In spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,
Restricted is the result of constraints placed on assets that are externally imposed by creditors or imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed are amounts set aside by formal action
of the Commission’s members. Formal Commission action is also required to modify or rescind an established
commitment. Assigned is the result of constraints on amounts imposed by the government’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
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In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in the following three
components;

Net Investments in Capital Assets - This is the component of net position that reports the difference between
capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of debt, excluding
unexpended proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted - The component of net position that reports the constraints placed on the use of assets by either
external parties and/or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted - The difference between the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources that is not reported in Net Investment in Capital Assets or Restricted Net Position.

AS

Change in Accounting Policy
I

The Commission changed its accounting policy during the year with respect to how the State of Nevada
Treasurer’s interest is accounted for in the General Fund. In previous years, a portion of the interest was
allocated from the General Fund to the other funds in a manner similar to the allocation of overhead
expenses. In the current year, management determined that this allocation to other funds is unnecessary
since the other funds each receive their own allocation of interest from the State of Nevada. This new
method is preferable to the Commission as management believes it more accurately reflects the income
attributable to each fund. The cumulative impact of this change in policy on net fund balance cannot be
determined; therefore, the policy change has been applied prospectively. However, in the current year, the
change in the General Fund balance was approximately $44,000 higher under the new method than it would
have been under the previous allocation method.

Note 2- StewardshIp, Compliance, and Accountability

Budg.tory lnlorm&lon

Biennial budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the accounting policies applied for financial reporting
purposes by the Commission under GAAP except that encumbrances for goods and services not received by
fiscal year end are considered expenditures of the current period solely for budgetary purposes. There were no
encumbrances outstanding at the beginning or end of the year. Although budgets are adopted on a biennial
basis, each year is treated separately and unexpended budget authorizations lapse at each year end.

Prior to September 1 of each even-numbered year, the State’s Director of Administration submits proposed
operating budgets to the Nevada Budget Division covering the biennium beginning the following July 1. After
review of the budgets by the Nevada Budget Division between September 1 and November 15, hearings
Involving the Commission, the Director of Administration and the Governor are held between November 15 and
December 22, of each budget year. The biennium budgets are transmitted to the State Legislature no later than
the 10th day of the legislative session held In odd-numbered years and, for adjourning, the Legislature enacts the
budgets.
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Net expenditures of the general fund (gross expenditures less amounts allocated to other funds) are controlled
by budget categories (personnel services, travel in-state, travel out-of-state, operating expenses, and capital
outlay for the general fund; and general and administrative and intergovernmental for the special revenue
fund).

Management of the Commission cannot amend any budget categories. However, the Director of Administration
is authorized to approve requests for changes in the budget involving transfers between expenditure categories
not exceeding 10% of originally budgeted expenditures, or $30,000 in the aggregate, of the respective budget
categories. Any changes exceeding 10% or $30,000 require approval of the State Legislature’s Interim Finance
Committee.

Budgetary Information

Following is a brief summary of the covenants included in the bo d res •ons of the enterprise funds:

The Commission is required to charge purchasers of services and all users of the State facilities sufficient
amounts to cover all operation and maintenance expenses (except depreciation), all debt service requirements,
and any amounts required to be deposited in reserve accounts.

Monthly transfers for debt service — A debt servic’%1t is required to ensure payment of interest and
principal when due. Transfers are made each month from revenues to provide 1/6 of the next semiannual
interest payment and 1/12 of the annual bond princi;l payment.

Classes of users — The power marketing fund serves two classes of users, retail utility customers and industrial
customers. The power delivery fund serves the SNWA and its customers.

r
Other — Other requirements of the bond covenants include maintaining bond funds in separate depository
accounts with the State Treasurer and an audit of the Commission’s financial statements by an independent
certified public accountant.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission complied with all requirements of the bond
covenants.
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At June 30, 2020, the Commission’s carrying amount of restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
was $21,037,549. These deposits with the Treasurer are not categorized as to credit risk, but are fully insured by
the FDIC or collateralized by the State’s financial institutions. Securities used as such collateral must total 102
percent of the deposits with each financial institution.

Note 4- Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents restricted at June 30, 2020, by bond covenants or contractual agreements are
summarized as follows:

Restricted for:
Debt service
Reserve for revenue insufficiency
Cash held by contractual agreement

Total restricted

NoteS - Capital Assets
1

$ 1,051,894
261,018

1,289,906

$ 2,602,818

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:
. y

Beginning
Balances Increase

45,374 $
25,574

109,877
720

27,420

$ 45,374
24,854
82,457

Total capital assets being
depreciated 180,825 28,140 152,685

Less accumulated depreciation
Office equipment
Office furniture and fixtures
Automobiles

45,374
25,574
93,593 5,594

Total accumulated depreciation 164,541 5,594 28,140 141,995

Capital assets, net $ 16,284 $ (5,594) $ $ 10,690

Governmental Activities
Capital assets being depreciated
Office equipment

A $
Office furniture and fixtures
Automobiles

Decrease
Ending

Balances

$

720
27,420

45,374
24,854
71,767
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Beginning
Balances Increase

Ending
Balances

Total capital assets being
depreciated 88. 708.362 77,964 - 88,786,326

Less accumulated depreciation
Power transmission systemt
Office equipment
Automobiles

41,333,418
32,783

210,396

1,993,496
13,059
41,127

43,326,914
45,842

251,523

_______________

2,047,682

$ 47,131,765 4’ $ (1,969,718)

Note 6- Balances Due to/from Other Funds

The composition of Interfund balances, representing
repayments, as of June 30, 2020, was as follows:

$ 2,053,276

$ 45,162,047

Funds

General
Power marketing
Power delivery

Due From

S
17,534

210,231

$ 227,76S

Due To

$ 227,765

$ 227,765

Decrease
Business-type Activities

Capital assets being depreciated
Power transmission system $ 88,278,263 $ - $ - $ 88,278,263
Office equipment 40,683 8,345 - 49,028
Automobiles 389,416 69,619 - 459,035

Total accumulated depreciation 41,576,597

Capital assets, net

________________

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities
General government

Business-type Activities
Power marketing
Power delivery

4,

5,594

317,867
1,729,815

______________

43,624,279

_____

$

_____

the net of short•term working capital advances and
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Note 7- Unearned Revenue

The Commission has recognized two primary liabilities for unearned revenue, one each in the two enterprise
funds. One liability is recorded in Power Delivery Project Fund (PDP) and is related to the electric power
transformation and transmission facilities serving the SNWA water treatment and distribution facilities at Lake
Mead and in Henderson, Nevada. The other liability is recorded in the Power Marketing Fund and is related to
the Basic Step-down Yard facilities serving the Commission’s retail Hydropower customers at the industrial
complex also in Henderson at a different location. These liabilities represent customer advance funding for
Commission owned and operated facilities to provide power for their operations.

The PUP facilities were constructed through the issuance of State of Nevada General Obligation Bonds in
September of 1997, September of 1999 and in April of 2005. The facilities constructed are dedicated to the
SNWA water related assets and are being used to deliver electric power to the water operations. The cost of the
facilities in the form of the bond payment obligation was a component of the charges for power as the
Commission delivered electricity to the SNWA. In 2011 and again in 2015 the SNWA prepaid the debt obligation
and ultimately extinguished the Commission’s Bond liability. This extinguishment constituted a prepayment for
a portion of the future cost of the electric resources related to facility use as power will be delivered in the
future. The Commission recorded the prepayment and recognizes the revenue from the prepayment in concert
with the depreciation of the physical assets to match the revenue to the related depreciation costs as the
facilities are used,

—,

‘-I’

The Basic Step-Down yard facilities were constructed beginning in 1999 through 2002 and were funded through
assessments on the retail customers as the facilities were built. Due to the number of customers involved there
was no need to enter into debt to fund the construction and the project was completed through customer
advance funding. The facilities and a liability in the form of unearned revenues were recorded and the
depreciation and revenue have been recognized over the life of the assets from the beginning.

$44,2D5,444 of the total unearned revenue balance at June 30, 2020 relates to construction and facilities and is
being amortized over various useful lives as determined during construction for Phase I, Phase II and River
Mountains, and over an average life of the 39.5 years for the Basic Step-down Yard. The remaining balance in
unearned revenue primarily relates to amounts received for services not yet rendered as of June 30, 2020.

Future amortization of Unearned Revenue relating to construction and facilities will be recognized as follows:
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2021 $ 1,959,115
2022 1,959,115
2023 1,959,115
2024 1,959,115
2025 1,944,655
2026- 2030 9,716,292
2031 -2035 9,594,844
2036- 2040 8,523,417
2041-2045 4,163,256
2046 - 2050 2,202,233
2051-2052 225,287

$ 44,206,444

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission recognized total revenue of $1,959,115 related to the
amortization of construction and facilities unearned revenue.

A I

Note 8- Long-term Debt

General Obligation Bonds ‘l%IIIIllllIJ1bP

Section 3 of ArticleS of the Nevada Stat€Constitution limits public debt to 2% of the State’s assessed valuation.
The legislature may authorize debt that is not subject to the foregoing limitation to protect and preserve, or
obtain the benefits of, any of its property & natural resources. The bonded debt incurred to fund the State’s
share of the cost of uprating electrical generating facilities at Hoover Dam does not affect the legal debt margin,
because it was incurred to obtain the benefits of the facility.

‘I’

On March 12, 2014, because of delays in determining a final allocation of shared costs, interim bonds of
$28,425,000 were issued to fund the Commission’s expected share of the cost of construction of the visitor’s
center at Hoover Dam, with expenditures charged to prepaid power. In June 2014, the Commission sold the
$29,415,000 Series 2014E General Obligation Refunding bonds, proceeds from which were used to pay off the
interim bonds. These bonds mature annually on October 1, 2015 through 2043, with interest payable semi
annually on October 1 and April 1 at annual rates of .50% to 4.25%.

General obligation bonds outstanding at year end are summarized as follows:

Maturity Interest Outstanding at
Business-type Activities Dates Rates June 30, 2020

General obligation refunding series 2014E 2015- 2043 0.50 to 4,25% $ 26,740,000
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt consisting of general obligation bonds are as
follows:

Total
Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Requirements

2021 $ 755,000 $ 1,033,573 $ 1,788,573
2022 770,000 1,014,880 1,784,880
2023 800,000 993,670 1,793,670
2024 815,000 970,653 1,785,653
2025 835,000 945,058 1,780,058
2026-2030 4,6S5,000 4,257,998 8,912,998
2031 -2035 5,610,000 3,265,808 8,875,808
2036- 2040 6,580,000L 1,960,525 8,540,525
2041 - 2044 S,920,000’. 515,950 6,435,950

$ 41,698,115

Changes in Long-term Obligations

Changes in long-term obligations during the year ended June 30, 2020, are summarized below:

Balance Balance
July 01, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 Current

Governmental Activities p
Accrued compensated absences $ A 458,109 - $ 246,616 $ 186,316 $ 518,409 $ 328,966

Business-type Activities
General obligation bonds -. 27,480,000 - 740,000 26,740,000 755,000
Unamortized bond discount (143,877) - (5,995) (137,882) -

Total J.794232 $ 246,616 $ 920,321 $27,120,527 $1,083,966

Accrued compensated absences are paid from the general fund.

Note 9 - Risk Management

The Commission Is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissIons; and natural disasters. The Commission participates In the State risk pool and Is
liable for payment of nominal deductible amounts. The State then becomes responsible for all losses in excess of
the nominal Insurance deductible.
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Note 10- Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The Commission may from time to time be a party to various litigation matters. It is management’s opinion,
based upon advice from legal counsel, that the risk of financial losses to the Commission from such litigation, if
any, will not have a material adverse effect on the Commission’s future financial position, results of operations
or cash flows. Accordingly, no provision has been made for any such losses.

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement

The federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the
Commission. Under this act, an amount may be required to be rebated to the United States Treasury (called
“arbitrage’), for interest on the bonds to qualify for exclusion from gross income for federal income tax
purposes. Rebatable arbitrage is computed as of each installment computation date. The arbitrage rebate
calculation as of the most recent such date indicates that no amount is due. Future calculations might result in
adjustments to this determination. r

Note 11- Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
r

The Commission’s employees are covered by the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), which
was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948, and is governed by the Public
Employees Retirement Board (the PERS Board) whose seven members are appointed by the governor. The
Commission does not exercise any control over PERS.

PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system which includes
both regular and police/fire members. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to qualified
employees who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed
or substantially impaired by age or disability.

Benefits, as required by NRS, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at time of retirement
and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months with special provisions for
members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, and July 1, 2015. Benefit payments to which
participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits,
and survivor benefits.
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Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited
year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of
average compensation. For members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier,
and for regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, there is a 2.25% factor. PERS offers
several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired
employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and
various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579, which for members entering the
system before January 1,2010, is equal to the lessor of:

1. 2% per year following the third anniversary of the commen ent of benefits, 3% per year following the
sixth anniversary, 3.5% per year following the ninth annivers , 4% per year following the twelfth
anniversary and 5% per year following the fourteenth anniversary, or

2. The average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (or the PERS Board approved index) for
the three preceding years.

In any event, a member’s benefit must be increased by the percentages in paragraph 1, above, if the benefit of a
member has not been increased at a rate greater an ore o the average of the Consumer Price Index (All
Items) (or other PERS Board approved md fort nod be ween retirement and the date of increase.

For members entering the system on or aft anua 1, 2010, the post-retirement increases are the same as
above, except that the increases do not ex 4% per year.

a
Regular members are eligrfoi’?lrement at age 65 with 5 years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service,
or at any age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are
eligible for retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with 30
years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, are eligible for retirement at age
65 with 5 years of service, or at age 62 with 10 years of service or at age 55 with 30 years of service or any age
with 33 1/3 years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on the monthly benefit allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, Is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of
average compensation. Both regular and police/fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon
completion of five years of service.

The authority of establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution rates
rests with NRS. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the employer-pay contribution EPC) plan prior to July
1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two alternative contribution plans. Contributions are shared equally
by employer and employee In which employees can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the
employer or can make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer.

The PERS basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as of percentage of
salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when
due.
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PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis for determining the prospective funding contribution
rates required to fund the system on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance
with the required rates established by NRS. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS
286.421 and 286.450. The actuarial funding method used is the entry age normal cost method. It is intended to
meet the funding objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage
of salary.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the required contribution rates for regular members were 15.25 percent and
29.25 percent for employer/employee matching and EPC, respectively. Contributions to the pension plan from
the Commission were $465,000 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

A
PERS collective net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. For this purpose,
certain actuarial valuation assumptions are stipulated by GASB and may vary from those used to determine the
prospective funding contribution rates.

A
The total PERS pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions (based on the results
of an experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016 dated October 16, 2017), applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate 2.75% L.A

Payroll Growth 5.00% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.5%
Productivity Pay Increase 0.5% rConsumer Price Index 2.75%
Actuarial cost method - Entry age normal and level percentage of payroll
Projected Salary Increases . Regular: 4.25% to 9.15%, depending on service

I Police/Fire: 4.55% to 13.90%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases

Other Assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2019 funding actuarial valuation

Mortality rates (Regular and Police/Fire) — For healthy members it is the Headcount•Weighted RP-2014 Healthy
Annuitant Table projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries. For
ages less than SO, mortality rates are based on the Headcount — Weighted RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables.
Those mortality rates are adjusted by the ratio of the mortality rate for healthy annuitants at age SOlo the
mortality rate for employees at age 50. The mortality rates are then projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016,

The mortality table used In the actuarial valuation to project mortality rates for all disabled regular members Is
the Headcount — Weighted RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, set forward four years.

For pre-retirement members it is the Headcount — Weighted RP-2014 Employee Table, projected to 2020 with
Scale MP-2016,

The RP-2014 Headcount.Welghted Mortality Tables, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries,
reasonably reflect the projected mortality experience of the Plan as of the measurement date. The additional
projection of 6 years Is a provision made for future mortality Improvement.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

PERS’s policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS
Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of
PERS. The Following target asset allocation policy was adopted as of June 30, 2019:

Long-term Geometric
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return *

Domestic equity 42% 5.50%
International equity 18% 5.50%
Domestic fixed income 28% 0.75%
Private markets 12% 6.65%

* These geometric return rates are combined to produce t o erm expected rate of
return by adding the long-term expected inflation rate of 2.75%.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% as of June 30, 2019. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be
made at the rate specified by NRS. Based on the assumption, PERS’s fiduciary net position at June 30, 2019, was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (7.50%) was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2019.

A I

The Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability at year end, calculated using the discount rate
of 7.50%, as well as what the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (6.50%) or 1% higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate
was as follows:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

Net pension liability $ 9,268,638 $ 5,986,027 $ 3,257,344

Detailed information about PERS fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report, available on the PERS website, www.nvpers.org under publications.

The Commission’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability was $5,986,027 which
represents 0.04390% of the collective net pension liability, which is a decrease from the previous year’s
proportionate share of 0.04395%. Contributions for employer pay dates within the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019, were used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share. Each employer’s proportion
of the net pension liability is based on their employer contributions relative to the total employer contributions
for all employers for the period ended June 30, 2019.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission’s pension expense was $544,410 and its
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions were as follows:

reported deferred

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments
Changes in proportion and differences between actual contributions

and proportionate share of contributrions
Contributions subsequent to measurement date

of

Deferred
Outflows
Resources

$ 224,469
243,606

150,075
465,000

$ 1,083,150

of

Deferred
Inflows
Resources

$ 172,659

297,783

95,238

$ 565,680

At June 30, 2019, the average expected remaining service life was 6.18 years

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date totaling $465,000 will be recojhized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2021.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

2022
2023
2024
2025 4,489

$ 52,470

Note 12 - Employee Benefit Plans —

Plan Description — The employees of the CommIssion participate in a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined
benefit postemployment plan administered by the Board of the Public Employees’ Benefits Program of the State
of Nevada (PEBP). NRS 287023 provides officers and employees eligible to be covered by any group insurance,
plan of benefits or medical and hospital service established pursuant to NRS 287 the option upon retirement to
cancel or continue any such coverage. The cost to administer the program is financed through the contributions
and Investment earnings of the plan. The PEBP Board is granted the authority to establish and amend the
benefit terms of the program. (NRS 287.043) PEBP issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and the required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained
from Public Employees’ Benefits Program, 901 South Stewart Street, Suite 1001, Carson City, Nevada 89701.

years ending June 30,

2020
2021

r
F’

F” $ 24,306
(101,880)

51,313
44,825
29,417

Total
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Benefits Provided - Employees of the Commission, who meet the eligibility requirements for retirement and, at
the time of retirement, are participants in the program, have the option upon retirement to continue group
insurance pursuant to MAC 287.530. MRS 287.0436 establishes a subsidy to pay an amount toward the cost of
the premium or contribution for persons retired from the Commission. Retirees assume any portion of the
premium not covered by the State. The current subsidy rates can be found at pebp.state.nv.us. Benefits include
health, prescription drug, dental, and life insurance coverage. As required by statute, benefits are determined
by the number of years of service at the time of retirement and the individual’s initial date of hire, Employees
hired after December 31, 2011 are not eligible to receive subsidies to reduce premiums. The following
individuals and their dependents are eligible to receive subsidies:

Any PEBP covered retiree with the Commission whose last employer was the state and who:
• Was initially hired prior to January 1, 2010 and has at least five years of public service: or

• Was initially hired on or after January 1, 2010, but before January 1, 2012 and has at least fifteen
years of public service: or

• Was initially hired on or after January 1, 2010, but before January 1, 2012 and has at least five years
of public service and has a disability: or

Any PEBP covered retiree whose last employer was not the state and who has been continuously covered under
PEBP as a retiree since November 30, 2008.

Contributions - The State allocates funds for payment of current and future post-employment benefits other
than pensions as a percentage of budgeted payrolls to all State agencies. The required contribution rate for
employers, as a percentage of covered payroll, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was 0.0234. For the year
ended June 30, 2020, these payments totaled $72,666 for the Commission.

7
OPEB liabilities, OPEB expense, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
the Commission’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability used to calculate
the net OPEB liability was determined by actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. The Commission’s proportion
of the net OPEB liability was based on the Commission’s share of contributions to PEBP relative to the total
contributions of all participating employers. At June 30, 2020 the Commission’s proportion was 0.1627 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission recognized OPEB expense of $123,598. At June 30, 2020, the
Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions $ 48,851 $ 96,842
Net difference between projected and actual earnings - 40,891
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 72,666

_____________

Total $ 121,517 5 137,733
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date in the amount of $72,666 will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year
ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ (45,278)
2021 (37,633)
2022 (7,660)

Total $ (88,882)

Actuarial Methods and Assumption- The total aPED liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Inflation Rate 2.50%
Salary Increases 0.50% prodEtivity pay increase, 2.68% average promotional

increase
Investment Rate of Return 3.51%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 7.5% initial, 4.5% ultimate

Mortality rates for healthy individuals were bised on the RP-2014 combined healthy mortality projected to 2020
with scale MP-2016. For healthy post-retirement individuals, same assumptions were used, set forward one year
for spouses and beneficiaries. Mortality rates for disabled individuals were based on the RP-2014 disabled
retiree mortality projected to 2020 with scale MP-2016, set forward 4 years.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based upon certain demographic and other
actuarial assumptions as recommended by the actuary, in conjunction with the State and guidance from the GASB
statement,

Discount Rate - The discount rate basis under GASB 75 is required to be consistent with a 20-Year Municipal
Bond Index. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index is used for the determination of
the discount rate. The assets in the trust as of June 30, 2019 are less than the expected benefit payments In the
first year; therefore, the crossover period Is assumed to be in the first year, which provides additional support
for continuing the discount rate at the 20-Year Municipal Bond Index rate. The discount rate used to measure
the total OPEB liability was 3.51%.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Sensitivity of the OPEB liabilities to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the net OPEB liabilities
of the plans, as well as what each plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.51 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.51 percent) than the current
discount rate:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Discount Discount Rate in Discount
Rate 2.51% Rate 3.51% Rate 4.51%

$ 2,499,732 $ 2,267,166 $ 2,065,390

Sensitivity of the OPEB liabilities to changes in the healthcore cost trend rates- The following presents the net OPEB
liabilities of the plans, as well as what each plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare
cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost
trend rates:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase in
in Healthcare Healthcare in Healthcare
Costs Trend Costs Trend Costs Trend

Rate — Rate Rate

$ 2,103,441 $ 2,267,166 $ 2,461,652

OPEB plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued audited annual financial statements of the State of Nevada State Retirees’ Health and
Welfare Benefits Fund, Public Employees’ Benefits Program financial report.

A 1

Note 13- JoInt VentureL

The Commission is a member of the Silver State Energy Association (SSEA). SSEA was established as a joint
venture through an interiocal agreement among the member agencies (Members), which, In addition to the
Commission, include the City of Boulder City, Lincoln Power District No. 1, Overton Power District No. S and the
SN WA.

SSEA is an association of public agencies with the common goal of jointly planning, developing, owning and
operating power resources to meet their own needs and those of their customers. The economies of scale
produced by the SSEA offer Improved project development opportunities and power purchasing capabilities, the
sharing of resources and expertise, and the opportunity for jointly managed energy needs.

As appropriate projects are selected for development, the Members involved in each project enter into a project
service agreement (PSA) indicating each participating Member’s allocation of project costs.

The business and other affairs of the SSEA are conducted by a Board of Directors consisting of one director
appointed by each Member. The appointed director may, but need not be, a member of the governing body of
the Member.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Financial information regarding SSEA can be obtained by writing:

Manager of Energy Accounting for
the Silver State Energy Association

P.O. Box 99956, MS 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89193-9956

The SSEA website is www.silverstateenergy.org/.

Note 14- Related Party

The Commission is governed by seven commissioners, three of whom are appointed by the Southern Nevada
Water Authority (SNWA) and four, including the board Chair, appointed by the Governor. The Commission and
SNWA do not share staff members or members of management. The SNWA, a local governmental organization,
is also one of the Commission’s principal revenue payers (see Tables in Statistical Section). In fiscal 2020, the
Commission received revenues from the SNWA for power and water resources but made no payments to the
SNWA for any purpose. The SNWA publishes a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be seen on
their website at SNWA.com. In addition, the Commission’s capacities work with other public entities, SNWA,
other states, and various governmental entities in fulfilling its statutory responsibilities; however, no other
entity has representatives on the board. In fiscal 202.NWA accounted for revenue of $11,713,784.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability Information

Multiple — Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years*

Proportionate
shareof the PERS

Proportionate collective net fiduciary net
Proportion of share of the pension liability position as a
the collective collective net as a percentage percentage of

Valuation Date net pension pension Covered of covered the total pension
June 30, liability liability (asset) payroll payroll liability

2014 0.04795% $ 6,305,091 $ 2,348,229 268.50% 76.31%
2015 0.04795% 4,997,140 2,531,235 197.42% 75.13%
2016 0.04902% 6,596,117 2,575,317 256.13% 7223%
2017 0.04412% 5,867,314 2,701,732 217.17% 74.40%
2018 0.04395% 5,993,734 2,856,435 209.83% 75.21%
2019 0.04390% 5,986,027 2,970,488 201.52% 76.45%

* Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan is not available for years prior to
the year ended June 30, 2014. As the information becomes available, this schedule will ultimately present
information for the ten most recent fiscal years.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Statutorily Required Employer Contribution Information

Multiple — Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years *

* Information for the multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan is not available for years
prior to the year ended June 30, 2014. As the information becomes available, this schedule will ultimately
present information for the ten most recent fiscal years.

Contributions
in relation to

Statutorily the statutorily Contribution
requi red requi red deficiency Covered

Fiscal Year contribution contributions (excess) payroll

Contributions
as a percentage

of covered
payroll

2014 $ 527,504 $ 527,504 $ - $ 2,348,299 22.46%
2015 507,091 507,091 - 2,531,235 20.03%
2016 523,411 523,411 - 2,575,317 20.32%
2017 395,979 395,979 - 2,701,732 14.66%
2018 406,477 406,477 - 2,856,435 14.23%
2019 423,042 423,042 - 2,970,488 14.24%
2020 460,007 465,000 - 3,091,661 15.04%
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Schedule of Commission Contributions for Other Postemployment Benefits

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years *

2018 2019 2020

Commissions proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.1740% 0.1675% 01627%

Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 2,261,443 2,218,398 2,267,166

Commission’s covered payroll 2,891,310 3,167,417 3,105,221

Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll 78.2152% 700381% 73.0114%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability 11.3300% 0.1205% 0.0166%

* GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until
ten years of data is available, CRC will present information only for those years which information
is available.
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Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Schedule of Changes in Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Prior Nine Fiscal Years *

2018 2019 2020

Contractually required contribution $ 68,235 $ 52,354 $ 72,662
Contributions in relation to the contractually required

contribution 66,117 69,279 72,666

Contribution excess (deficiency) (2,118) 16,925 4

Commission’s covered payroll $2,749,712 $ 3,167,417 $ 3,105,221

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll
2.48% 1.65% 2.34%

GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until
ten years of data is available, CRC will present information only for those years which information
is available.
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EideBailly
CPAs L BUSINESS ADViSORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Colorado River Commission
Las Vegas, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of intern ntrol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free f aterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. P 1
Auditor’s Responsibility e
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounUng policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major
fund of the Commission as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the
Research and Development Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress for the OPEB liability, and pension trend data on
pages XX through XX and XXX through XXX be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis and pension and OPEB
trend data, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with suffici t evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information —

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and
statistical section shown on pages XX through XX and XX through XX are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Introductory
section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with GovernmentAuditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated XXXXXXXXXX
on our consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

EB Signature

Las Vegas, Nevada
xxxxxxxxxxx
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EideBailly
CPAs S BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards

To the Members of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Colorado River Commission
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards gener accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained n ernmentAuditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial sta ments of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Colorado River Commission of Nevada
(the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Commission financial statements and have issued

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commissions
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commissions
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commissions
internal control. r

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

EB Signature

Las Vegas, Nevada
xxxxxx xx
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DATE

To the Governing Body of the
Colorado River Commission of Nevada
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of Colorado River Commission of Nevada (the Commission) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated [Date] . Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our letter dated September 28, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Commission solely for the purpose
of determining our audit procedures and not to vide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating si i icant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you. ,

A

Planned Scope and TIming of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.

1
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Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the
engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Commission is included in Note ito the financial
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies during 2020.

As disclosed in Note ito the financial statements, the Commission changed its accounting policy
during the year with respect to how the State of Nevada Treasurer’s interest is accounted for in the
General Fund. In previous years, a portion of the interest was allocated from the General Fund to the
other funds in a manner similar to the allocation of overhead expenses. In the current year,
management determined that this allocation to other funds is unnecessary since the other funds each
receive their own allocation of interest from the State of Nevada. This new method is preferable to
the Commission as management believes it more accurately reflects the income attributable to each
fund, The cumulative impact of this change in accounting policy on net position / net fund balance
cannot be determined; However, in the current year, the change in the General Fund balance was
approximately $44,000 higher under the new method than it would have been under the previous
allocation method.

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to
inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the
effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from
management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

• Other postemployment benefit plans’ actuarial accrued liabilities
• Pension plans’ actuarial accrued liabilities

2
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We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that it
is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the
Commission’s financial statements relate to the disclosures associated with the defined benefit pension
plan and the other post-employment benefits. These are sensitive because they represent a significant
percentage of the liabilities presented on the statement of net position.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with agement relating to the performance of
the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional stan equire us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, othe an those that we believe are trivial, and
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require
us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the
relevant classes of transactions, a t nces or disclosures, and the financial statements as a
whole. ce:a

The following misstat nts that weientified as a result of our audit procedures were brought to
the
attention of, and corrected by, management:

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 9
To correct clasaifloflon o(evense.

2964490-04-7100 WATER STATE OWNED BLDG RNT-B&G 35.21800

296-4490-04-7060 water BOE Contracts 3521800

Total 35,218.00 35,21e.oo

QASBEntriesJE#1O

To correct the capItal macat dlipoial In 0MB entry.

298-4490-00-1853 NO- Aitomobllos 54,840.00

296-4490-04-7640 DeprecIation oçonle - ornmonuiI actk4lios 27,420.00

GA-EB-1803 #ulomobitos 27,420.00

Total 54,540,00 54,840.00
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ATTACHMENT A

The following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the
current and prior periods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

General Fund and Governmental Activities
Certain revenues were recorded in the improper period, resulting in an understatement of
receivables of $12,632, an understatement of revenues of $7,161, and an understatement of fund
balance / net position of $5,471.

Government Activities Only
The adjustments made for OPEB did not take the impact of the implicit subsidy into account, resulting
in an understatement of deferred outflow of resources of $20,661, understatement of beginning net
position of $20,356, and overstatement of expenses of $305.

Power Delivery Fund and Business-Type Activities
A vehicle purchase was accrued to an expense account in fiscal year 2020 when the vehicle was not
delivered until fiscal year 2021. This resulted in an overstatement of accounts payable and expenses
of $49,733.

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements is described above for each respective fund as well as
the government-wide financial statements

DIsagreements with Manageni

For purposes of this lettial ards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, which could be significant to the Commission’s financial statements or the auditor’s
report, No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management which are Included in the
management representation letter dated “[date of management representation letterj”

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management Informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues
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ATrACHMENT A

In the normal course of our professional association with the Commission, we generally discuss a variety
of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating
conditions affecting the entity, and operating plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the
Commission’s auditors.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents
containing the Commission’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial
information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to
corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with such standards, we have read the
other information and considered whether such information, or the manner of its presentation, was
materially inconsistent with its presentation in the financial statements.

r
P

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information,
or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its
presentation, appearing in the financial statements.

‘It—

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, the Finance
Committee, and management of Colorado River Commission of Nevada and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Eide Bailly Signat

Las Vegas, Nevada
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